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202 S. Jefferson Street |  Roanoke, Virginia 24011-1702
540-345-6000 | www.hometownbankva.com



HomeTown Bankshares Corporation Shareholder Information

Annual Meeting
Th e annual meeting of shareholders will be held on Tuesday, May 13, 2014 at 2:00 pm at Th e Jeff erson Center, Roanoke, Virginia.

Requests for Information
Requests for information should be directed to Ms. Susan K. Still, President and CEO, HomeTown Bankshares Corporation, 
202 South Jeff erson Street, Roanoke, VA 24011; telephone (540) 345-6000.

Independent Auditors
Yount, Hyde & Barbour, PC | 50 South Cameron Street | Winchester, Virginia 22601

Corporate Counsel
Gentry Locke Rakes & Moore, LLP  | 10 Franklin Road, SE  | SunTrust Plaza  | Roanoke, Virginia 24022

Stock Transfer Agent
Registrar & Transfer  | 10 Commerce Drive  | Cranford, NJ 07016  | Telephone: (800) 368-5948

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Th e Bank is a member of the FDIC. Th is statement has not been reviewed or confi rmed for accuracy or relevance by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Main Offi ce
202 South Jeff erson Street  |  Roanoke, VA 24011  |  Telephone: (540) 345-6000  |  Fax: (540) 342-5626 

South Roanoke Offi ce
3521 Franklin Road, S.W.  |  Roanoke, VA 24014  |  Telephone: (540) 278-2070  |  Fax: (540) 278-1969 

Smith Mountain Lake Offi ce
13400 Booker T. Washington Highway  |  Moneta, VA 24121  |  Telephone: (540) 719-2265  |  Fax: (540) 719-0796

Colonial Avenue at 419 Offi ce
4225 Colonial Avenue  |  Roanoke, VA 24018  |  Telephone: (540) 278-1399  |  Fax: (540) 278-1958

NewRiver Bank Offi ce
2950 Market Street  |  Christiansburg, VA 24073  |  Telephone: (540) 391-4050  |  Fax: (540) 260-3484

Salem Offi ce (Opening Summer 2014)
852 W. Main Street  |  Salem, VA 24153



Another year of record operating performance 
was realized in 2013 during which we reached 
key strategic initiatives in growth, profi tability, 
capital and loan quality. Th ese accomplish-
ments provided meaningful progress toward 
our becoming a top-tier performing bank.

Total assets eclipsed $400 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2013 with very strong loan and core 
deposit growth of 8% and 10%, respectively. 

Th ese growth rates continue to compare favorably to our peers, result-
ing in a continued increase in market share. A key ingredient of our 
banking success and growth has been our convenience, with branches 
open 40% longer than most of our peers, and the continued expansion 
of our delivery outlets and our lines of business.

We completed construction of our New River Valley branch in No-
vember 2013, and broke ground in Salem, VA in December 2013, to 
build HomeTown Bank’s 6th full-service branch that will be completed 
in the summer of 2014. In addition, we added two new ATMs at our 
branch site in Salem and in downtown Roanoke at the newly renovat-
ed Center in the Square. We also expanded our lines of business with 
HomeTown Investments, which opened in April 2013.

Another key ingredient to our success in 2013 was a signifi cant 
increase in profi tability that reached record levels for the third consec-
utive year. Net income from operations increased 63% over the prior 
year, which for comparison purposes excludes the one-time deferred 
tax benefi t realized in 2012. Record earnings resulted from a 10 basis 
point increase in our net interest margin, continued improvement in 
loan quality and eff ective control of operating costs. 

Raising capital was our third major accomplishment during 2013.  
Th e $14 million capital raise completed in June 2013, provided fund-
ing to retire all of the Company’s TARP securities as well as provide 
additional capital for growth. Th e new capital coupled with earnings 
from operations further enhanced the Company’s capital position as a 
well-capitalized bank. 

Meaningful improvement in loan quality was the fourth major 
accomplishment in 2013. Net charge-off s, past due loans and non-
accruals all improved considerably and continued to compare very 
favorably to our peers. Th e Bank’s Other Real Estate Owned portfolio 
(OREO) also decreased 9% during 2013.

We are very pleased with our accomplishments during 2013 as well 
as the positive outlook for the coming year. We also appreciate the 
knowledge, guidance, and support of our Chairman, Bill Rakes, who 
has served as an excellent leader for the Company and a tremendous 
mentor to me over the past six years. While Bill will be stepping down 
as Chairman, he will remain an active and valuable member of the 
Board of Directors.

As always, we very much appreciate the support of our shareholders and 
customers, and we look forward to amplifying our service to our commu-
nities with expanded products and facilities during 2014 and beyond.  

Susan K. Still, President & CEO

In annual report messages it is common to refl ect 
on historical successes, commend management 
and staff  for their eff orts and achievements and 
to look toward future successes.

HomeTown Bank has been open for business 
eight and a half years and in that short period 
has established itself as a leading community 
bank in the region. It has earned a reputation for 
unparalleled customer service and has gained 

the respect of its peers and the communities it serves.
Despite the challenges of the fi nancial institutions crisis and the 

Great Recession commencing in 2008, HomeTown Bank has continued 
to grow (more than doubling its assets in the last six years) and profi t-
ability has increased signifi cantly for the last three years. Th roughout 
this diffi  cult period for banking, HomeTown Bank remained a “well-
capitalized bank” and operated without any regulatory actions being 
imposed. Our outstanding President and Executive Management Team 
are commended for their performance and leadership of a highly com-
petent staff  committed to excellence and superior customer service.

When we formed the Bank and assembled our excellent Board of 
Directors a policy was adopted to periodically rotate the position of 
Chairman of the Board.  I followed Warner Dalhouse who did an out-
standing job as our initial Chairman. When I retire from the positions 
of Chairman of the Bank and holding company boards at the conclu-
sion of the Annual Shareholders Meeting, George Cartledge, Jr. will 
move up from Vice Chairman to Chairman. I will continue to serve on 
the boards of the Bank and the holding company and I look forward 
to continuing to work with George and all of our directors. George is 
a successful businessman, a civic leader, and is well grounded in board 
leadership. He and our President will provide excellent leadership of the 
boards and of our management team.

Victor F. Foti, one of the three initial founders of the Bank, will re-
tire from the boards of the Company and the Bank as of the annual 
meeting of shareholders. He has served with commitment and eff ective-
ness since the Bank was formed and his consistently wise counsel will 
be missed. We sincerely thank him for his dedication to HomeTown 
Bank and HomeTown Bankshares Corporation and for his leadership 
and many contributions.

Marc S. Fink, a founding member of the Bank’s Board of Directors, 
has been nominated to fi ll the seat vacated by Vic’s retirement from the 
holding company board. Marc will bring to the Bankshares Board the 
insights and commitment which have characterized his service on the 
Bank’s Board of Directors

We express to you, our shareholders, our gratitude for your invest-
ment and support. We are convinced that our business model is right 
and that we are poised for continued growth and further enhancement 
of our franchise. Th is will undoubtedly lead to increased profi tability 
and demand for our shares.

William R. Rakes, Chairman 

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS
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Th e Bank’s board of directors provides a diverse range of professional expertise to HomeTown Bank. But even more than that, each 
director resides in the communities we serve. As residents of Roanoke, Salem, Smith Mountain Lake, and the New River Valley, our 
customers benefi t from a committed group of professionals that are also neighbors. Th ey are committed to the Bank’s success and 
growth as well as the communities in which we serve. We appreciate the ongoing support and leadership from the Bank’s locally based 
board of directors.

Board of Directors of HomeTown Bank
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Nancy H. Agee, President & CEO, Carilion Clinic
Kenneth S. Bowling, Vice President, H T Bowling Inc.
George B. Cartledge, Jr., Chairman & CEO, Grand Home Furnishings
Warner Dalhouse, Retired Chairman and CEO, Dominion Bankshares, Inc.
Marc S. Fink, President & CEO, Fink’s Jewelers, Inc.
Victor F. Foti, Retired, Foti, Flynn, Lowen and Co., CPAs
Daniel D. Hamrick, Attorney at Law
Shirley J. Martin, Retired, Banker
William R. Rakes, Partner, Gentry Locke Rakes & Moore
Susan K. Still, President & CEO, HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
James M. Turner, Jr., Retired Chairman and CEO, J.M. Turner & Co., Inc.
David D. Willis, Vice President, Rockydale Quarries
Barton J. Wilner, President, Entré Computer Center
Danielle H. Yarber, Vice President of Sales, xpedx

OUR LEADERS

Our continued appreciation goes to the founding organizers of HomeTown Bank and NewRiver Bank. 

HomeTown Bank | November 2005 
Leon and Kathleen Atkinson | R. Th omas Beach | Robert G. Bennett | Chan and Kae Bolling  | Kenneth S. Bowling | John P. Bradshaw, Jr | Th urman W. 
Brammer | Th omas O. Branch | William C. Bundy | Cindy and Dave Cappellari | Dr. Gregory Capps | George B. and Dr. Barbara Cartledge, III | Allen B. 
Childress | John R. Clark, M.D. | Billy P. Craft  | Kenneth and Linda Cumins | Calvert and Eva de Coligny | Anderson Wade Douthat, III | Anderson Wade 
Douthat, IV | Dr. James and Holly Drougas | Russ and Kelly Ellis | Lucy and Bruce Farrell | John and Iva Ferguson | Alvin B. Fink | Norman D. Fintel | 
William Lee Harder | Lance R. Hodges | Kellogg Hunt, Jr. M.D. | Annie and John Lichtenstein | J. Granger and Anne B. Macfarlane | Lois and Arnold Masinter | 
Dr. Lawrence K. Monahan | Roberts and Sandra Moore | John Moticha, Jr. | Elizabeth Hancock Muse | Richard and Delaine Newcomb | Samuel G. Oakey, III | 
John and Martha Parrott | James R. and Ginger Pietrzak | Alton B. Prillaman | David and Lori Rakes | James C. Reynolds | Dr. and Mrs. Robert H. Sandel | 
John F. Shoulders, Jr. | Edward M. Smith | Hunter D. Smith | Patsy and Garnett Smith | George “Chip” Snead | Mr. & Mrs. George A. Steadman, III | Elbert 
Hale Wampler, Sr. | Dr. and Mrs. Jesse A. Webster | Rick and Charlotte White | J. David Wine | Harold C. Wingate | Emily A. Woodrum | Edwin T. Yarber

NewRiver Bank, a branch of HomeTown Bank | June 2008
Mike Turman and Truman Bolt | Caryn N. Bushong | Ralph D. Carroll | James K. Clay | Kendall O. Clay | Richard P. & Linda B. Gordon | David L. Hagan | 
Barry Hall | William Gary & Carrie S. Hall | Allen W. Harman | Mr. & Mrs. Robert Kroeger | Aurelia D. Lacy | Mr. W. H. Maddy, Jr. | Stephen C. McBroom|  
Carl N. & Ramsey E. McNeil  | Stanley W. Moran | Ted & Martha M. O’Brien | Kirtesh & Reena Patel | Robert A. Phillips | Robert L. & Tanya R. Phillips | 
William B. Poff  | Joyce B. Pugh | James W. Radford, Jr. & James W. Radford, III | K. Michael & Rachel E. Robinson | Dewey N. Jr. & Melissa G. Rotenberry | 
Alex & Dana B. Rygas | Frank D. Sale | Dennis L. & Imogene R. Setliff  | Larry J. Shelor | Larry N. Smith | Gary W. Stockner | Curtis M. Turner Jr. | 
Eric D. Umberger

Board of Directors of 
HomeTown Bankshares Corporation 

William R. Rakes, Chairman
George B. Cartledge, Jr., Vice-Chairman
Susan K. Still, President & CEO, Director
Nancy H. Agee, Director
Warner Dalhouse, Director
Victor F. Foti, Director
Daniel D. Hamrick, Director
James M. Turner, Jr., Director

The Executive Offi cers of HomeTown Bank
Susan K. Still, President & CEO
Laurie C. Hart, Executive Vice President
William C. Moses, Executive Vice President
Charles W. Maness, Jr., Executive Vice President
Terrance E. O’Shaughnessy, Executive Vice President
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Standing, Left to Right:  Victor Foti,  James Turner,  George Cartledge,  Daniel Hamrick,  Nancy Agee,  Warner Dalhouse. Seated, Left to Right:  Susan Still,  William Rakes 

Standing, Left to Right:  Daniel Hamrick, Shirley Martin, Barton Wilner, Danielle Yarber, 
George Cartledge, Marc Fink, Kenneth Bowling, David Willis, Victor Foti, James Turner, 
Warner Dalhouse, Nancy Agee. Seated, Left to Right:  William Rakes, Susan Still

Left to Right:  William Moses,  Laurie Hart, 
Terrance O’Shaughnessy, Susan Still, Charles Maness



4

Th e Roanoke Valley is much more than the place where HomeTown Bank was founded nearly nine years ago. It’s a place that 
many of our customers live, work or play. Situated among the Blue Ridge Mountains, it’s a vibrant community of beauty, 
opportunity, and culture.

HomeTown Bank is committed to supporting the Roanoke Valley and its neighboring communities through our dedication to 
the fi nancial well-being of the people and businesses that call this area home. We are also proud to support the area organizations 
that improve the area’s quality of life, such as Junior Achievement of Southwest Virginia, Roanoke Symphony Orchestra, 
Center in the Square, and the Salem Red Sox, to name a few. With a new branch coming to Salem this summer, we are excited 
to expand our presence and make HomeTown Bank even more convenient for our Salem fans. 

ROANOKE VALLEY

The Colonial Avenue location displays an outdoor theme as part of the 
Bank’s checking program.

HomeTown Bank held a groundbreaking ceremony for the 
Salem location scheduled to open Summer 2014.

Branch Manager, Kristin Routt assists one 
of HomeTown Bank’s youngest customers, 
an HTB Kids’ Club member.

The beloved Roanoke Star is one of the area’s 
most notable landmarks.
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Two of our Kids’ Club Members hang out with the infl atable pig 
at the Fall Shred Day.

HomeTown Bank is a proud sponsor and fan of the 
Salem Red Sox.

A favorite historical landmark that’s a part of 
the downtown Roanoke skyline.

Roanoke’s historic Fire Station #1 on 
Church Street in downtown Roanoke.

Terri Curro volunteers with Junior Achievement 
during its 5 -5 -5 program, in which 20 students 
visited HomeTown Bank.

HomeTown Bank’s South Roanoke location 
at 3521 Franklin Road.

“My bank knows me, not just 
my account.”
Ryan Boitnott, K-Guard

“My bank knows how to keep up with my business.”
Charlie Overstreet, Northwest Hardware

“HomeTown Bank understands what drives our business.”
Billy and Steve Roberts, Yellow Cab
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Th e second community that we made home is Smith Mountain Lake. With a branch located in Westlake, HomeTown Bank is 
proud to serve the people who have made this area home. While it may be a second home for many, this popular Virginia lake 
community makes everyone feel welcome. A regular supporter of Clean up the Lake, the popular 4th of July fi reworks, Rotary 
Club of SML, and the SML Chamber of Commerce, HomeTown Bank enjoys taking an active role in making this community 
a great place to live and to visit.  

SMITH MOUNTAIN LAKE

People enjoying one of the many activities at this beautiful lake.

The Westlake branch located at 13400 Booker T. Washington 
Highway in Moneta.

There are beautiful and unique opportunities available for golfers around Smith Mountain Lake.
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“Many banks talk about relationships, but HomeTown Bank creates them.”
Julie and Jan Sessor

Pat Parte and Amanda Perdue promote the Bank’s popular Totally Free 
Checking account.

The Westlake branch displays an Old Virginia theme for 
the Bank’s unique checking program.

Kathryn Polk, HomeTown Bank’s 
2013 Chairman Award Winner, 
with Homer the pig. A fi sherman enjoys a day on the water of a lake that has gained 

national attention for its fi shing opportunities.

Branch Manager Frank Chrzanowski 
dresses the part for the SML Chamber’s 
annual Pirate Days in July.
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Aft er serving the community for fi ve years from two locations that were on opposite sides of a divided highway, we were thrilled 
to move into our new, larger location where all employees could serve our customers under one roof. Th e convenient location 
provides easy access to our great people, products and services in a more comfortable environment. While the New River 
Valley has seen a lot of changes in the local banking scene, we are committed to serving this area for years to come. Our support 
is evident throughout the community with various sponsorships and fundraisers, including the Kiwanis Wilderness Trail 
Festival; United Way of Montgomery, Radford, and Floyd; Montgomery County Chamber of Commerce; and Mountain 
Valley Charitable Foundation.

NEW RIVER VALLEY

NewRiver Bank’s new location at 2950 Market Street in Christiansburg.

NewRiver Bank enjoys being part of the annual 
Kiwanis Wilderness Trail Festival.

NewRiver Bank presented a check on the track during its race 
sponsorship at Shelor Motor Mile.
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A crowd gathers at NewRiver Bank in November to cut the 
ceremonial ribbon!

The NewRiver location joins the Christiansburg Police 
Department in fi ghting breast cancer.

A check was presented to the United Way of 
Montgomery, Radford and Floyd during the 
grand opening celebration of NewRiver Bank.

As neighbors and fans of Virginia Tech, a building 
material similar to the attractive Hokie Stone was 
used at our new location.

HomeTown Bank’s beloved mascot 
Homer made his debut at the 
NewRiver Bank Grand Opening 
celebration in December.

Members of the New River Advisory Board. Standing, Left to Right: Robert A. Phillips, J. Barry Hall, 
K. Michael Robinson, Dennis L. Setliff, W. Garry Hall. Seated Left to Right:  W. H. Maddy Jr. , Richard P. Gordon. 
Not Pictured: James K. Clay, David L. Hagan, J. Michael Turman, Stanley W. Moran

“It’s a bank that makes you feel at home.”
Marietta Hanks



000’s Omitted    
   Percent 
 2013 2012 Change 

EARNINGS      
Net Interest Income   $  13,808 $   12,880 7.2%
Non Interest Income 1,444 1,402 3.0% 
Non Interest Expense 11,058 10,351 6.8% 
Net Income From Operations*     2,729   1,671 63.3% 
Net Income 2,729 4,596 -40.6%

*Net Income excluding one-time deferred tax benefi t in 2012    

ENDING BALANCES     
Assets $402,437 $370,451 8.6% 
Earning Assets 359,157 341,190 5.3% 
Loans 297,933 274,937 8.4% 
Deposits 339,770 309,997 9.6% 
Shareholders’ Equity 39,538 36,719 7.7% 
    
PER COMMON SHARE      
Net Income, Diluted   $       0.48 $       1.22 -60.7% 
Book Value 8.12 8.12 0% 
Closing Market Price 6.36 4.10 55.1% 
   
FINANCIAL RATIOS      
Return on Average Assets 0.71% 1.25%   
Return on Average Equity 6.68% 12.69%   
Average Equity to Average Assets 10.62% 9.84%   
Price to Earnings (x) 13.25x 3.36x   
Price to Book Value (x) .78x .50x    
   
NONFINANCIAL DATA      
Shareholders 1,808 1,880    
Employees (FTEs) 83 78    
Branches 5 5   
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
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Th is Annual Report to Shareholders contains forward-looking statements. Th ese statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties 
that could cause actual results to diff er materially fr om those anticipated in the forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such a 
diff erence include, but are not limited to, changes in the interest rate environment, management’s business strategy, national, regional and 
local market conditions and legislative and regulatory conditions.

Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which refl ect management’s view only as of the date hereof. Th e 
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to refl ect subsequent events or circumstances.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
Roanoke, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HomeTown Bankshares Corporation and subsidiary 
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes 
in stockholders’ equity, and cash fl ows for the years then ended. Th ese fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Th ose standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
fi nancial statements are free of material misstatement. Th e Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to 
perform, an audit of its internal control over fi nancial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control 
over fi nancial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the eff ectiveness of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting. Accord-
ingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the fi nancial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and signifi cant estimates made by manage-
ment, as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial 
position of HomeTown Bankshares Corporation and subsidiary as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their 
operations and their cash fl ows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
Winchester, Virginia
March 27, 2014
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HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2013 and 2012

 

Dollars In Th ousands, Except Share and Per Share Data December 31,  December 31,
 2013  2012
ASSETS   
Cash and due from banks $ 19,537    $ 9,812
Federal funds sold                   738      196
Securities available for sale, at fair value              57,922      63,466
Restricted equity securities, at cost                2,564      2,591
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $3,721 in 2013 and $3,790 in 2012            294,212      271,147
Property and equipment, net              12,155      9,754
Other real estate owned, net of valuation allowance of $935 in 2013 and $575 in 2012                8,143      8,938
Bank owned life insurance               3,518    –
Deferred tax asset, net                1,159      1,400
Accrued income                1,877      1,590
Other assets                   612      1,557
   Total assets $          402,437    $ 370,451
            
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY          
Deposits:          
Noninterest-bearing $ 46,232    $ 32,627
Interest-bearing            293,538      277,370
   Total deposits            339,770      309,997
Short-term borrowings                   258      216
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings              22,000      22,000
Accrued interest payable                   286      332
Other liabilities                   585      1,187
   Total liabilities            362,899      333,732
            
Commitments and contingencies   –     –
            
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:          
Preferred stock, no par value; Series A 10,000 shares and  Series B 374 shares authorized, 
    issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012   –     10,374
Preferred stock, no par value; Series C 14,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding at      
    December 31, 2013 and no shares at December 31, 2012  13,293   –
Discount on preferred stock   –     (142)
Common stock, $5 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding  
    3,270,299 (includes 27,846 restricted shares) at December 31, 2013 and 3,262,518 
    (includes 25,896 restricted shares) at December 31, 2012               16,351      16,167
Surplus              15,339      15,487
Retained defi cit              (4,846)     (6,587)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income                 (599)     1,420
   Total stockholders’ equity              39,538      36,719

   Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $          402,437    $ 370,451
  
 
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

 
Dollars In Th ousands, Except Share and Per Share Data  2013  2012
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME:          
Loans and fees on loans $            14,403  $          13,797 
Taxable investment securities                 1,277     1,631 
Nontaxable investment securities                    206     50 
Dividends on restricted stock                    100     92 
Other interest income                      44     49 
Total interest and dividend income               16,030     15,619 
INTEREST EXPENSE:         
Deposits                 1,845     2,299 
Preferred stock dividends                         –     38 
Other borrowed funds                    377     402 
   Total interest expense                 2,222     2,739 
   Net interest income               13,808     12,880 
Provision for loan losses                    125     1,408 
   Net interest income aft er provision for loan losses               13,683      11,472 
           
NONINTEREST INCOME:         
Service charges on deposit accounts                    314     283 
ATM and interchange income                    310     231 
Mortgage loan brokerage fees                    282     368 
Gains on sales of investment securities                    152      131 
Other income                    386      389 
   Total noninterest income                 1,444     1,402 
           
NONINTEREST EXPENSE:         
Salaries and employee benefi ts                 5,242      4,894 
Occupancy and equipment expense                 1,317     1,259 
Data processing expense                    596      682 
Advertising and marketing expense                    457      392 
Professional fees                    458     343 
Bank franchise taxes                    203     137 
FDIC insurance expense                    514     490 
Gains, losses on sales and writedowns of other real estate owned, net                    582     566 
Other real estate owned expense                    250     314 
Directors’ fees                    217      227 
Other expense                 1,222     1,047 
   Total noninterest expense               11,058     10,351 
   Net income before income taxes                 4,069      2,523 
Income tax expense (benefi t)                 1,340      (2,073)
   Net income $               2,729   $            4,596 
Eff ective dividends on preferred stock                    846     534 
Accretion of discount on preferred stock                    142      75 
   Net income available to common stockholders $               1,741   $            3,987 

Basic earnings per common share $                 0.53   $               1.22 

Diluted earnings per common share $                 0.48   $     1.22 

Weighted average common shares outstanding          3,269,063      3,259,424 

Diluted average common shares outstanding          4,416,679     3,259,424 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

 
Dollars In Th ousands  2013  2012
NET INCOME $ 2,729 $ 4,596     
      
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:       
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of deferred taxes:         
Net unrealized holding (losses) gains on securities available for sale during the period   (2,898)   1,195
Deferred income tax benefi t (expense) on unrealized holding (losses) gains on securities   
   available for sale    979    (768) 
Reclassifi cation adjustment for gains included in net income   (152)    (131)
Tax expense related to realized gains on securities sold    52     45 
   Total other comprehensive (loss) income   (2,019)    341
   Comprehensive income $ 710  $ 4,937
  
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

 
Dollars in Th ousands
  
  

 
BALANCE, 
  DECEMBER 31, 2011
Net income
Other comprehensive income, 
  net of tax
Preferred stock dividend paid
Accretion of discount on 
  preferred stock
Stock based compensation
BALANCE, 
  DECEMBER 31, 2012
Net income
Other comprehensive loss, 
  net of tax
Restricted stock awarded
Preferred stock issued
Preferred stock redeemed
Preferred stock dividend paid
Accretion of discount on 
  preferred stock
Stock based compensation
BALANCE, 
  DECEMBER 31, 2013

  
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Preferred
Stock Series    

A & B
  
 $ 10,374
 
 

 
 
  

  
 $ 10,374
 
 

 (10,374)
 
 

 
 
 $ –

Preferred
Stock 

Series C
    
    $ –

 

    $ –

 
 13,293

    $ 13,293

Common 
Stock

    
    $ 16,167
 
 

 
 

    $ 16,167
 
 
 
 184

 
 
 

    $ 16,351

Surplus
    
    $ 15,458
 
 

 

 29

    $ 15,487
 
 

 (184)

 
 

 36

    $ 15,339

Retained 
Defi cit

    
 $   (9,773) 
 4,596
 

 (1,335)

 (75)

 
    $  (6,587) 
 2,729
 

 (846) 

 (142) 
 

    $ (4,846) 

Discount
 on

Preferred 
Stock

    
    $ (217) 
   
   
 
  

 75 

    $ (142) 
   
   
 
 
 
   
  

 142
 
  
    $ –

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

  
 $ 1,079 
 

 341

 
 

 
 $ 1,420
 

 (2,019)

 
 
 

 $ (599)

Total

$ 33,088
 4,596

 341
 (1,335)
 
 –
 29

$ 36,719
 2,729

 (2,019)
 –
 13,293
 (10,374)
 (846)
 
 –
 36

$ 39,538
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

 
Dollars in Th ousands 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:      
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:
 Depreciation and amortization
 Provision for loan losses
 Amortization of premium on securities, net
 Gains, losses on sales and writedowns of other real estate, net
 Gains on sales of investment securities
 Losses on disposal of fi xed assets
 Increase in value of bank owned life insurance
 Stock compensation expense
 Deferred tax expense (benefi t)
 Changes in assets and liabilities:
  Accrued income
  Other assets
  Accrued interest payable
  Other liabilities
  Net cash fl ows provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
 Net (increase) decrease in federal funds sold
 Purchases of investment securities
 Sales, maturities, and calls of available for sale securities
 Redemption (purchase) of restricted equity securities, net
Net increase in loans
 Proceeds from sales of other real estate
 Purchases of bank owned life insurance
 Purchases of property and equipment
 Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment
  Net cash fl ows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
 Net increase in noninterest-bearing deposits
 Net increase (decrease) in interest-bearing deposits
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings
 Net increase in FHLB borrowings
 Preferred stock issue, net
 Preferred stock redeemed
 Preferred stock dividend payment
  Net cash fl ows provided by fi nancing activities
   Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Cash and cash equivalents, ending
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash payments for interest

Cash payments for income taxes
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer from loans to other real estate owned
  
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2013
 
$ 2,729 
  
               539 
               125 
            2,261 
               582 
              (152)
               114 
 (18)
                 36 
            1,272 
  
              (287)
               945 
                (46)
              (602)
            7,498 
   
              (542)
         (18,739)
          19,124 
                 27 
         (24,803)
            1,826 
        (3,500)
           (3,063)
                   9 
         (29,661)
   
          13,605 
          16,168 
                 42 
                  –   
         13,293 
        (10,374)
              (846)
          31,888 
            9,725 
            9,812 
$        19,537 
   
$          2,268 

$                38 
   
$ 1,613

2012
 
$           4,596 
  
               508 
            1,408 
               774 
               566 
               (131)
                 12 
                 –   
                 29 
           (2,926)
   
               (218)
             1,039
 (103)
 (104)
  5,450
   
          10,167 
         (18,639)
          24,802 
               (201)
         (29,120)
            1,723 
                 –
               (692)
                  –   
         (11,960)
   
            5,805 
           (3,444)
       (233)
 3,000 
 –   
  –
           (1,335)
            3,793 
           (2,717)
          12,529 
$           9,812 
   
$           2,842 

$                73 
   
$ 1,665
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
Organization
On September 4, 2009, HomeTown Bankshares Corporation (the “Company”) acquired all outstanding stock of HomeTown Bank (the 
“Bank”) in an exchange for shares of the Company on a one-for-one basis to become a single-bank holding company with the Bank be-
coming a wholly-owned subsidiary. Th e Bank was organized and incorporated under the laws of the State of Virginia on November 9, 
2004 and commenced operations on November 14, 2005. Th e Bank currently serves Roanoke City, Virginia, the County of Roanoke, 
Virginia, the City of Salem, Virginia, Christiansburg, Virginia, and surrounding areas. As a state chartered bank which is a member of the 
Federal Reserve System, the Bank is subject to regulation by the Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions, the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation and the Federal Reserve Board.
 
Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies
Th e following is a description of the signifi cant accounting and reporting policies the Company follows in preparing and presenting its 
consolidated fi nancial statements.
 
Principles of Consolidation
Th e consolidated fi nancial statements include the accounts of HomeTown Bankshares Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary 
HomeTown Bank. All signifi cant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
 
Use of Estimates
In preparing fi nancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, man-
agement is required to make estimates and assumptions that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the 
consolidated balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could diff er from 
those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to signifi cant change in the near term relate to the determination of the 
allowance for loan losses, the valuation of other real estate owned, and the valuation of deferred tax assets. Substantially all of the Com-
pany’s loan portfolio consists of loans in its market area. Accordingly, the ultimate collectability of a substantial portion of the Company’s 
loan portfolio and the recovery of a substantial portion of the carrying amount of foreclosed real estate (as applicable) is susceptible to 
changes in local market conditions.
 
Subsequent Events
In preparing these fi nancial statements the Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition of disclosure through 
the date the fi nancials were issued.
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and amounts due from correspondent banks. For the purpose of presentation in the 
consolidated statements of cash fl ows, cash and cash equivalents are defi ned as those amounts included in the consolidated balance sheet 
caption “cash and due from banks.”
 
Securities
Investments in debt and equity securities with readily determinable fair values are classifi ed as either held to maturity, available for sale, or 
trading, based on management’s intent. Currently, all of the Company’s investment securities are classifi ed as available for sale. Available for 
sale securities are carried at estimated fair value with the corresponding unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in 
other comprehensive income. Gains or losses are recognized in earnings on the trade date using the amortized cost of the specifi c security 
sold. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the securities.

Impairment of securities occurs when the fair value of a security is less than its amortized cost. For debt securities, impairment is considered 
other-than-temporary and recognized in its entirety in net income if either (i) the Company intends to sell the security or (ii) it is more-
likely-than-not that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If, however, the Company 
does not intend to sell the security and it is not likely that it will be required to sell the security before recovery, the Company must deter-
mine what portion of the impairment is attributable to a credit loss, which occurs when the amortized cost basis of the security exceeds 
the present value of the cash fl ows expected to be collected from the security. If there is no credit loss, there is no other-than-temporary 
impairment. If there is a credit loss, other-than-temporary impairment exists, and the credit loss must be recognized in net income and the 
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remaining portion of impairment must be recognized in other comprehensive income. Th e Company regularly reviews each investment 
security for other-than-temporary impairment based on criteria that include the extent to which cost exceeds market price, the duration of 
that market decline, the fi nancial health of and specifi c prospects for the issuer, the best estimate of the present value of cash fl ows expected 
to be collected from debt securities, the Company’s intention with regard to holding the security to maturity and the likelihood that the 
Company would be required to sell the security before recovery.
 
Restricted Equity Securities
As members of the Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB), the Company is required to main-
tain certain minimum investments in the capital stock of the FRB and FHLB. Th e Company’s investment in these securities is recorded 
at cost, based on the redemption provisions of the FRB and FHLB.
 
Loans
Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off  are reported at their 
outstanding principal amount adjusted for any charge-off s, allowance for loan losses and deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Loan 
origination fees and certain direct origination costs are capitalized and recognized as an adjustment of the yield of the related loan.
 
Interest is accrued and credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding. Th e accrual of interest on impaired loans for all 
classes is discontinued when, in management’s opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. When inter-
est accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest for the current year is reversed. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to 
the extent cash payments are received. When facts and circumstances indicate the borrower has regained the ability to meet the required 
payments, the loan is returned to accrual status. Past due status of loans is determined based on contractual terms. Th e loan portfolio is 
comprised of the following classes.
 
• Residential real estate construction loans carry risks that the home will not be fi nished according to schedule, will not be fi nished 

according to the budget and the value of the collateral may, at any point in time, be less than the principal amount of the loan. Con-
struction loans also bear the risk that the general contractor may be unable to fi nish the construction project as planned because of 
fi nancial pressure unrelated to the project.

• Land acquisition and development loans and commercial construction loans carry risks that the project will not be fi nished according 
to schedule, will not be fi nished according to budget and the value of the collateral may, at any point in time, be less than the principal 
amount of the loan. Land acquisition and development loans and commercial construction loans also bear the risk that the developer 
in the case of land acquisition and development loans or the general contractor in the case of commercial construction loans, may be 
unable to fi nish the development or construction project as planned because of fi nancial pressure unrelated to the project.

• Residential real estate loans carry risks associated with the continued credit worthiness of the borrower and changes in the value of 
the collateral.

• Commercial real estate loans carry risks associated with the successful operation of a business or a real estate project, in addition to 
other risks associated with the ownership of real estate, because the repayment of these loans may be dependent upon the profi tability 
and cash fl ows of the business or project.

• Commercial, industrial and agricultural loans carry risks associated with the successful operation of a business. In addition, there is 
risk associated with the value of the collateral which may depreciate over time and cannot be appraised with as much precision.

• Equity lines of credit carry risks associated with the continued credit worthiness of the borrower and changes in the value of the collateral.

• Consumer loans carry risks associated with the continued credit worthiness of the borrower and the value of the collateral (e.g., rap-
idly-depreciating assets such as automobiles), or lack thereof. Consumer loans are more likely than real estate loans to be immediately 
adversely aff ected by job loss, divorce, illness or personal bankruptcy.

 
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect 
the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered 
by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal 
and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignifi cant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classifi ed 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
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as impaired. Management determines the signifi cance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into con-
sideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the 
borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on 
a loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash fl ows discounted at the loan’s 
eff ective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral, less cost to sell, if the loan is collateral dependent.
 
TDRs (Troubled Debt Restructurings) occur when the Company agrees to signifi cantly modify the original terms of a loan due to the 
deterioration in the fi nancial condition of the borrower. TDRs are considered impaired loans. Upon designation as a TDR, the Company 
evaluates the borrower’s payment history, past due status and ability to make payments based on the revised terms of the loan. If a loan was 
accruing prior to being modifi ed as a TDR and if the Company concludes that the borrower is able to make such payments, and there are 
no other factors or circumstances that would cause it to conclude otherwise, the loan will remain on an accruing status. If a loan was on 
nonaccrual status at the time of the TDR, the loan will remain on nonaccrual status following the modifi cation and may be returned to 
accrual status based on a record of making payments as scheduled for a period of six consecutive months.
 
Allowance for Loan Losses
Th e allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. 
Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan balance is confi rmed. Consumer 
loans are charged off  when they become 120 days past due. Non-consumer loans are charged off  when the loan becomes 180 days past 
due unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection. Borrowers that are in bankruptcy are charged off  unless the debt has 
been reaffi  rmed and is well secured and recovery is probable. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. Th e allowance 
for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s periodic review of the collectability of the 
loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may aff ect the borrower’s ability 
to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. Th is evaluation is inherently subjective as it 
requires estimates that are susceptible to signifi cant revision as more information becomes available.
 
Th e allowance consists of specifi c and general components. Th e specifi c component relates to loans that are classifi ed as impaired, and is 
established when the discounted cash fl ows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carry-
ing value of that loan. For collateral dependent loans, an updated appraisal will be ordered if a current one is not on fi le. Appraisals are 
performed by independent third-party appraisers with relevant industry experience. Adjustments to the appraised value may be made 
based on recent sales of like properties or general market conditions when appropriate. Th e general component covers non-classifi ed, or 
performing, loans and those loans classifi ed as substandard or special mention that are not impaired. Th e general component is based on 
historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors, such as current economic conditions, including current home sales and foreclo-
sures, unemployment rates and retail sales. Th e characteristics of the loan ratings are as follows:
 
• Pass rated loans are to persons or business entities with an acceptable fi nancial condition, appropriate collateral margins, appropriate 

cash fl ow to service the existing loan, and an appropriate leverage ratio. Th e borrower has paid all obligations as agreed and it is ex-
pected that this type of payment history will continue. When necessary, acceptable personal guarantors support the loan.

• Special mention loans have a specifi c defi ned weakness in the borrower’s operations and the borrower’s ability to generate positive 
cash fl ow on a sustained basis. Th e borrower’s recent payment history may be characterized by late payments. Th e Company’s risk 
exposure is mitigated by collateral supporting the loan. Th e collateral is considered to be well-margined, well maintained, accessible 
and readily marketable.

• Substandard loans are considered to have specifi c and well-defi ned weaknesses that jeopardize the viability of the Company’s credit ex-
tension. Th e payment history for the loan may have been inconsistent and the expected or projected primary repayment source may be 
inadequate to service the loan. Th e estimated net liquidation value of the collateral pledged and/or ability of the personal guarantor(s) 
to pay the loan may not adequately protect the Company. Th ere is a distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the 
defi ciencies associated with the loan are not corrected in the near term. A substandard loan would not automatically meet our defi ni-
tion of impaired unless the loan is signifi cantly past due and the borrower’s performance and fi nancial condition provide evidence that 
it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due.

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
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• Substandard nonaccrual loans have the same characteristics as substandard loans; however, they have a non-accrual classifi cation and 
are considered impaired.

• Doubtful rated loans have all the weaknesses inherent in a loan that is classifi ed substandard but with the added characteristic that the 
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable 
and improbable. Th e possibility of loss is extremely high.

• Loss rated loans are not considered collectible under normal circumstances and there is no realistic expectation for any future payment 
on the loan. Loss rated loans are fully charged off .

 
Loan Fees and Costs
Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs charged by the Bank are deferred and the net amount 
amortized as an adjustment of the related loan’s yield. Th e Bank is amortizing these net amounts over the contractual life of the related 
loans or, in the case of demand loans, over the estimated life. Net fees related to standby letters of credit are recognized over the commit-
ment period.
 
Property and Equipment
Land is carried at cost. Buildings, equipment, and leasehold improvements are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amor-
tization. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets on the straight-line basis. Estimated useful lives 
range from ten to forty years for buildings and from three to ten years for equipment, furniture, and fi xtures. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over a term which includes the remaining lease term and probable renewal periods on a straight-line basis. Maintenance and 
repairs are charged to expense as incurred and major improvements are capitalized.
 
Foreclosed Properties
Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are to be sold and are initially recorded at fair value less anticipated 
cost to sell at the date of foreclosure establishing a new cost basis. Aft er foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by manage-
ment, and the real estate is carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and 
changes in the valuation allowance are included in loss on foreclosed real estate. 

Bank Owned Life Insurance
Th e Company purchased life insurance policies during 2013 on certain key executives. Th ese policies are recorded at their cash surrender 
value. Increases in the cash surrender value of the life insurance contracts are included in noninterest income in the consolidated income 
statement caption “other income.”

Transfers of Financial Assets
Transfers of fi nancial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets 
is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of condi-
tions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not 
maintain eff ective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity, or the ability to 
unilaterally cause the transferee to return specifi c assets.
 
Advertising Expense
Th e Company expenses advertising and marketing costs as they are incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, advertis-
ing and marketing expense was $457 thousand and $392 thousand, respectively.
 
Income Taxes
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or 
liability is determined based on the tax eff ects of the temporary diff erences between the book and tax basis of the various balance sheet 
assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allow-
ance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
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When tax returns are fi led, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities, 
while others are subject to uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the amount of the position that would be ultimately 
sustained. Th e benefi t of a tax position is recognized in the consolidated fi nancial statements in the period during which, based on all 
available evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including the 
resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not off set or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that 
meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefi t that is more than 50 percent likely 
of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. Th e portion of the benefi ts associated with tax positions taken that 
exceeds the amount measured as described above is refl ected as a liability for unrecognized tax benefi ts in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination. Interest 
and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefi ts are classifi ed as additional income taxes in the consolidated statement of income. 
Th ere are no unrecognized tax benefi ts as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Earnings per Common Share
Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average num-
ber of common shares outstanding during the period, aft er giving retroactive eff ect to stock splits and dividends. Diluted earnings per 
common share is similar to the computation of basic earnings per common share except that the denominator is increased to include the 
number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued. Th e nu-
merator is adjusted for any changes in income or loss that would result from the assumed conversion of those potential common shares. 
Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock options and are determined using the 
treasury stock method.
 
Comprehensive Income 
Comprehensive income refl ects the change in the Company’s equity during the year arising from transactions and events other than in-
vestment by and distributions to stockholders. It consists of net income plus certain other changes in assets and liabilities that are reported 
as separate components of stockholders’ equity rather than as income or expense. Th ese changes for the Company relate solely to unreal-
ized gains and losses on securities available for sale.
 
Fair Value Measurements
Th e Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to determine fair value 
disclosures. Th e fair value of a fi nancial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market 
prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted prices for the Company’s various fi nancial instruments. In cases where quoted 
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Th ose techniques are 
signifi cantly aff ected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash fl ows. Accordingly, the fair value 
estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument.
 
Th e fair value guidance provides a consistent defi nition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in an orderly transaction (that is, not a 
forced liquidation or distress sale) between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions. If there has 
been a signifi cant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation techniques or the use of multi-
ple valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price at which willing market participants would transact 
at the measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts and circumstances and requires the use of signifi cant 
judgment. Th e fair value is a reasonable point within the range that is most representative of fair value under current market conditions.
 
Credit Related Financial Instruments
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, including commitments under lines 
of credit arrangements, commercial letters of credit and standby letters of credit. Such fi nancial instruments are recorded when they 
are funded.

Stock-Based Compensation Plan
Th e 2005 Stock Option Plan was approved by stockholders on April 20, 2006, which authorized 550,000 shares of common stock to be 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
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used in the granting of incentive options to employees and directors. Th is is the fi rst stock incentive plan adopted by the Company. Under 
the plan, the option price cannot be less than the fair market value of the stock on the date granted. An option’s maximum term is ten years 
from the date of grant. Options granted under the plan may be subject to a vesting schedule.
 
Th e Company accounts for the stock option plan in accordance with applicable accounting guidance. Under the fair value recognition 
provisions of this guidance, stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recog-
nized as expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is the vesting period.
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11, “Balance Sheet (Topic 210) – Disclosures about Off setting Assets and Liabilities.”  
Th is ASU requires entities to disclose both gross information and net information about both instruments and transactions eligible for 
off set in the consolidated balance sheet and instruments and transactions subject to an agreement similar to a master netting arrangement. 
An entity is required to apply the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or aft er January 1, 2013, and interim periods 
within those annual periods. An entity should provide the disclosures required by those amendments retrospectively for all comparative 
periods presented. Th e adoption of the new guidance did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements.

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01, “Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Off setting Assets 
and Liabilities.”  Th e amendments in this ASU clarify the scope for derivatives accounted for in accordance with Topic 815, Derivatives 
and Hedging, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements and securities bor-
rowing and securities lending transactions that are either off set or subject to netting arrangements. An entity is required to apply the 
amendments for fi scal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning on or aft er January 1, 2013. Th e adoption of the new guid-
ance did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassifi ed Out of 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.”  Th e amendments in this ASU require an entity to present (either on the face of the state-
ment where net income is presented or in the notes) the eff ects on the line items of net income of signifi cant amounts reclassifi ed out of 
accumulated other comprehensive income. In addition, the amendments require a cross-reference to other disclosures currently required 
for other reclassifi cation items to be reclassifi ed directly to net income in their entirety in the same reporting period. Companies should 
apply these amendments for fi scal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning on or aft er December 15, 2012. Th e Company 
has included the required disclosures from ASU 2013-02 in the consolidated fi nancial statements. 

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-10, “Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Inclusion of the Fed Funds Eff ective Swap Rate 
(or Overnight Index Swap Rate) as a Benchmark Interest Rate for Hedge Accounting Purposes.”  Th e amendments in this ASU permit 
the Fed Funds Eff ective Swap Rate (also referred to as the Overnight Index Swap Rate) to be used as a U.S. benchmark interest rate for 
hedge accounting purposes under Topic 815, in addition to interest rates on direct Treasury obligations of the U.S. government and the 
London Interbank Off ered Rate. Th e amendments also remove the restriction on using diff erent benchmark rates for similar hedges. Th e 
amendments apply to all entities that elect to apply hedge accounting of the benchmark interest rate under Topic 815. Th e amendments 
are eff ective prospectively for qualifying new or redesignated hedging relationships entered into on or aft er July 17, 2013. Th e adoption 
of the new guidance did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefi t When a Net Oper-
ating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists.” Th e amendments in this ASU provide guidance on the 
fi nancial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefi t when a net operating loss carryforward, similar tax loss, or tax credit car-
ryforward exists. An unrecognized tax benefi t, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefi t, should be presented in the fi nancial statements 
as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward, except as follows. 
To the extent a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward is not available at the reporting date under 
the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction to settle any additional income taxes that would result from the disallowance of a tax position 
or the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction does not require the entity to use, and the entity does not intend to use, the deferred tax asset 
for such purpose, the unrecognized tax benefi t should be presented in the fi nancial statements as a liability and should not be combined 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
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with deferred tax assets. Th e amendments in this ASU are eff ective for fi scal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning aft er 
December 15, 2013. Early adoption is permitted. Th e amendments should be applied prospectively to all unrecognized tax benefi ts that 
exist at the eff ective date. Retrospective application is permitted. Th e adoption of the new guidance is not expected to have a material 
impact on the Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements.

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-01, “Investments—Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323): Accounting for Invest-
ments in Qualifi ed Aff ordable Housing Projects (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force).” Th e amendments in this ASU 
permit reporting entities to make an accounting policy election to account for their investments in qualifi ed aff ordable housing projects 
using the proportional amortization method if certain conditions are met. Under the proportional amortization method, an entity am-
ortizes the initial cost of the investment in proportion to the tax credits and other tax benefi ts received and recognizes the net investment 
performance in the income statement as a component of income tax expense (benefi t). Th e amendments in this ASU should be applied 
retrospectively to all periods presented. A reporting entity that uses the eff ective yield method to account for its investments in qualifi ed 
aff ordable housing projects before the date of adoption may continue to apply the eff ective yield method for those preexisting invest-
ments. Th e amendments in this ASU are eff ective for public business entities for annual periods and interim reporting periods within 
those annual periods, beginning aft er December 15, 2014. Early adoption is permitted. Th e Company is currently assessing the impact 
that ASU 2014-01 will have on its consolidated fi nancial statements.  

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-04, “Receivables—Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subtopic 310-40): Reclassi-
fi cation of Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues 
Task Force).” Th e amendments in this ASU clarify that an in substance repossession or foreclosure occurs, and a creditor is considered to 
have received physical possession of residential real estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, upon either (1) the credi-
tor obtaining legal title to the residential real estate property upon completion of a foreclosure or (2) the borrower conveying all interest 
in the residential real estate property to the creditor to satisfy that loan through completion of a deed in lieu of foreclosure or through a 
similar legal agreement. Additionally, the amendments require interim and annual disclosure of both (1) the amount of foreclosed resi-
dential real estate property held by the creditor and (2) the recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans collateralized by residential 
real estate property that are in the process of foreclosure according to local requirements of the applicable jurisdiction. Th e amendments 
in this ASU are eff ective for public business entities for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning aft er 
December 15, 2014. Th e Company is currently assessing the impact that ASU 2014-04 will have on its consolidated fi nancial statements. 

NOTE 2. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Th e amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale are as follows:
(Dollars In Th ousands)  December 31, 2013  
    

U.S. Government agency securities
Mortgage-backed securities
Municipal securities

 
(Dollars In Th ousands) December 31, 2012  

U.S. Government agency securities
Mortgage-backed securities
Municipal securities

Amortized
 Cost

$ 26,489
 15,328
 17,012
$ 58,829

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains
$ 235
  193
  68
$ 496

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses
$ (440)
  (160)
  (803)
$ (1,403)

Estimated 
Fair Value

$ 26,284
  15,361
  16,277
$ 57,922

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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Amortized 
Cost

$ 28,825
  21,533
  10,965
$ 61,323

Gross 
Unrealized

 Gains
$ 1,049
  486
  698
$ 2,233

Gross
 Unrealized

 Losses
  $ (32)
  (35)
  (23)
  $ (90)

Estimated
 Fair Value
$ 29,842
  21,984
  11,640
$ 63,466
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Th e primary purpose of the investment portfolio is to generate income, diversify earning assets, and meet liquidity needs of the Company 
through readily saleable fi nancial instruments. Th e portfolio is made up primarily of fi xed rate bonds, whose prices move inversely with 
rates. At the end of any accounting period, the investment portfolio has unrealized gains and losses. Th e Company monitors the portfolio, 
which is subject to liquidity needs, market rate changes, and credit risk changes, to see if adjustments are needed. Th e primary concern in 
a loss situation is the credit quality of the business or entity behind the instrument. Th e primary cause of unrealized losses is the increase 
in market interest rates over the yields available at the time the securities were purchased.

At December 31, 2013, the Company does not consider any security in an unrealized loss position to be other-than-temporarily impaired.

U.S. Government and federal agency securities. Th e unrealized losses on nineteen of the Company’s investments in obligations of the 
U.S. government were caused by increases in market interest rates over the yields available at the time the securities were purchased. Th e 
contractual terms of those investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost bases of the 
investments. Because the Company does not intend to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be 
maturity, the Company does not consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2013.
 
Mortgage-backed securities. Th e unrealized losses on ten of the Company’s investments in government-sponsored entity mortgage-
backed securities were caused by increases in market interest rates over the yields available at the time the securities were purchased. 
Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, the Company does not consider 
those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2013.
 
Municipal securities. Th e unrealized losses on thirty-six of the Company’s investments in obligations of municipal securities were caused 
by increases in market interest rates over the yields available at the time the securities were purchased. All municipal securities are invest-
ment grade. Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates, credit spreads, ratings and not credit quality, 
and because the Company does not intend to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, 
the Company does not consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2013.
 
Th e following tables demonstrate the unrealized loss position of securities available for sale at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

(Dollars In Th ousands)  December 31, 2013  
  Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total  
  

U.S. Government agency securities 
Mortgage-backed securities
Municipal securities

(Dollars In Th ousands)  December 31, 2012  
   Less than 12 months  12 months or more Total  
 

U.S. Government agency securities
Mortgage-backed securities
Municipal securities

Estimated 
Fair Value

 $ 9,676
  5,964
  12,253
 $ 27,893

Estimated 
Fair Value

 $ –
  –
  –
 $ –

Unrealized 
Loss

 $ (341)
  (134)
  (683)
 $ (1,158)

Unrealized 
Loss

 $ –
  –
  –
 $ –

Estimated 
Fair Value
$ 1,897
  1,042
  1,185
$ 4,124

Estimated 
Fair Value
$ 3,400
  3,701
  1,595
$ 8,696

Estimated 
Fair Value
$ 11,573
  7,006
  13,438
$ 32,017

Estimated 
Fair Value
$ 3,400
  3,701
  1,595
$ 8,696

Unrealized 
Loss

$ (99)
  (26)
  (120)
$ (245)

Unrealized 
Loss

$ (32)
  (35)
  (23)
$ (90)

Unrealized 
Loss

$ (440)
  (160)
  (803)
$ (1,403)

Unrealized 
Loss

$ (32)
  (35)
  (23)
$ (90)

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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Th e amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities at December 31, 2013, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected 
maturities will diff er from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to prepay obligations with or without call or prepay-
ment penalties.

(Dollars In Th ousands)  

Less than one year
Over one through fi ve years
Over fi ve through ten years
Greater than 10 years

    
Proceeds from the sales, maturities and calls of securities available for sale in 2013 and 2012 were $19.1 million and $24.8 million, 
respectively. Th e Company realized $152 thousand in net gains on sales of twenty fi ve available for sale securities in 2013, compared to 
$131 thousand from the sales of six securities in the prior year. Th e net gain in 2013 included gross gains of $261 thousand, and gross 
losses of $109 thousand. Th e prior year included gross gains of $131 thousand and no gross losses. Total pledged securities had a fair 
market value of $11.7 million at December 31, 2013 and $16.1 million at December 31, 2012. Securities having a fair market value of 
$5.2 million were pledged to secure public deposits, while securities pledged to secure Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings totaled $4.4 
million. $2.1 million in securities were pledged for other purposes at December 31, 2013.

NOTE 3. LOANS RECEIVABLE
 
Th e major classifi cations of loans in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  December 31,  
   2013     2012
Construction:
   Residential
   Land acquisition, development & commercial
Real Estate:
   Residential
   Commercial
Commercial, industrial & agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
   Total loans
Less allowance for loan losses
   Loans, net
  

$ 6,768
  20,904
   
  72,934
  126,100
  42,155
  20,374
  8,698
 297,933
   (3,721)
$ 294,212

$ 5,036
  20,198
   
  69,691
  109,302
  42,382
  20,504
  7,824
 274,937
  (3,790)
$ 271,147

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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Amortized
 Cost

$ –
  768
  10,504
  47,557
$ 58,829

Estimated
Fair Value

$ –
  781
  10,335
  46,806
$ 57,922
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Th e past due and nonaccrual status of loans as of December 31, 2013 was as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)

Construction:
 Residential
 Land acquisition, 
  development & commercial
Real Estate:
 Residential
 Commercial
Commercial, industrial 
 & agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
 Total

Th e past due and nonaccrual status of loans as of December 31, 2012 was as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)

Construction:
 Residential
 Land acquisition, 
  development & commercial
Real Estate:
 Residential
 Commercial
Commercial, industrial 
 & agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
 Total

Th ere was one loan for $223 thousand that was past due ninety days or more and still accruing interest at December 31, 2013. Th ere were 
no loans past due ninety days or more and still accruing interest at December 31, 2012.

60-89 Days 
Past Due

 
  $ –
  
 –
   
  –
  –
  
 44
  –
  –
  $ 44

60-89 Days 
Past Due

 
  $ –

  723
   
  562
  –

  157
  –
  –
$ 1,442

90 Days 
or More 
Past Due

 
$ –
  
 –
   
  931
  –
  
 36
  59
  30
$ 1,056

90 Days 
or More 
Past Due

 
  $ –

  1,034
   
  184
  236

  –
  115
  –
  $ 1,569

Total Past 
Due

 
  $ –

  –
   
  931
  –

  350
  262
  46
  $ 1,589

Total Past 
Due

 
   $ –

  1,757
   
  746
  236

  157
  175
  –
  $ 3,071

Current
 
   $ 6,768

  20,904
   
  72,003
  126,100

  41,805
  20,112
  8,652
   $ 296,344

Current
 
   $ 5,036

  18,441
   
  68,945
  109,066

  42,225
  20,329
  7,824
   $ 271,866

Total 
Loans

 
    $ 6,768

  20,904
   
  72,934
  126,100

  42,155
  20,374
  8,698
    $ 297,933

Total 
Loans

 
    $ 5,036

  20,198
   
  69,691
  109,302

  42,382
  20,504
  7,824
    $ 274,937

Nonaccrual
 Loans

 
  $ –

  –
   
  707
  –

  193
  59
  30
  $ 989

Nonaccrual
 Loans

 
  $ –

  1,756
   
  582
  236

  –
  115
  –
  $ 2,689

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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30-59 Days 
Past Due

 
$ –
  
 –
   
  –
  –
  
 270
  203
  16
$ 489

30-59 Days 
Past Due

 
$ –
  
 –
   
  –
  –

  –
  60
  –
$ 60
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Impaired loans, which include TDRs of $6.3 million and the related allowance at December 31, 2013, were as follows:

December 31, 2013
With no related allowance: 
(Dollars In Th ousands)
Construction:
   Residential
   Land acquisition, development & commercial
Real Estate:
   Residential
   Commercial
Commercial, industrial & agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
   Total loans with no allowance

December 31, 2013
With an allowance recorded:
(Dollars In Th ousands)
Construction:
   Residential
   Land acquisition, development & commercial
Real Estate:
   Residential
   Commercial
Commercial, industrial & agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
   Total  loans with an allowance

Recorded
 Investment 

in Loans
 

$ –
  1,550
   
  412
  9,266
  283
  –
  –
$ 11,511

Recorded
 Investment 

in Loans
 
$ –
  –
   
  438
  –
  41
  –
  –
$ 479

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance

 

  $ –
  1,550
   
  412
  9,266
  283
  –
  –
  $ 11,511

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance

 
  $ –
  –
   
  438
  –
  41
  –
  –
  $ 479

Related 
Allowance

  $ –
  –
   
  –
  –
  –
  –
  –
  $ –

Related 
Allowance

 
  $ –
  –
   
  163
  –
  10
  –
  –
  $ 173

Average 
Balance

Total Loans

$ –
  1,550
   
  415
  9,365
  733
  –
  –
$ 12,063

Average 
Balance

Total Loans
 
$ –
  –
   
  439
  –
  34
  –
  –
$ 473

Interest 
Income

Recognized
 

$ –
  67
   
  18
  442
  46
  –
  –
$ 573

Interest 
Income

Recognized
 
$ –
  –
   
  16
  –
  1
  –
  –
$ 17

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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Impaired loans, which include TDRs of $6.5 million and the related allowance at December 31, 2012, were as follows: 

December 31, 2012
With no related allowance: 
(Dollars In Th ousands)
Construction:
   Residential
   Land acquisition, development & commercial
Real Estate:
   Residential
   Commercial
Commercial, industrial & agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
   Total loans with no allowance

December 31, 2012
With an allowance recorded:
(Dollars In Th ousands)
Construction:
   Residential
   Land acquisition, development & commercial
Real Estate:
   Residential
   Commercial
Commercial, industrial & agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
   Total  loans with an allowance

Troubled Debt Restructurings 
Troubled debt restructurings (“TDRs”) were comprised of three loans totaling $6.3 million at December 31, 2013. Two of the three 
loans totaling $6.3 million at year-end 2013 are included in impaired loans, but are performing in accordance with their restructured 
terms and are not on nonaccrual status. Th e remaining $30 thousand loan is past due and included in loans 60-89 days past due and 
nonaccrual loans at year end 2013. Th is compares with $6.5 million in total restructured loans at December 31, 2012. One of the loans 
classifi ed as a TDR at the end of the 2012 deteriorated further in 2013, resulting in a partial charge-off  of $154 thousand. Th ere was 
no valuation allowance related to total TDRs at December 31, 2013, compared to $137 thousand of the valuation allowance related to 
total TDRs as of December 31, 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, there were no loans modifi ed in a TDR.

Recorded
 Investment 

in Loans
 

$ –
  3,632
   
  611
  9,018
  916
  115
  –
$ 14,292

Recorded
 Investment 

in Loans
 

$ –
  –
   
  199
  1,139
  –
  –
  –
$ 1,338

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance

 

  $ –
  3,692
   
  611
  9,018
  916
  439
  –
  $ 14,676

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance

 

  $ –
  –
   
  199
  1,139
  –
  –
  –
  $ 1,338

Related 
Allowance

  $ –
  –
   
  –
  –
  –
  –
  –
  $ –

Related 
Allowance

  $ –
  –
   
  137
  71
  –
  –
  –
  $ 208

Average 
Balance

Total Loans

$ –
  3,647
   
  611
  9,018
  916
  115
  –
$ 14,307

Average 
Balance

Total Loans

$ –
  –
   
  199
  1,139
  –
  –
  –
$ 1,338

Interest 
Income

Recognized
 

$ –
  187
   
  23
  440
  33
  –
  –
$ 683

Interest 
Income

Recognized
 

$ –
  –
   
  13
  74
  –
  –
  –
$ 87

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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Th e following table presents by class of loan, information related to loans modifi ed in a TDR during 2012:

  Loans modifi ed as TDRs
 For the year ended December 31, 2012
  Number Pre-Modifi cation Post-Modifi cation
 of Outstanding Outstanding
 Contracts  Recorded Investment  Recorded Investment 
Class of Loan                          (Dollars In Th ousands)
 Construction loans:
   Residential
   Land acquisition, development & commercial
Real estate loans:
   Residential
   Commercial
Commercial, industrial, agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
   Total Loans

During 2012, the Company modifi ed one loan considered to be a TDR. Th e terms were modifi ed changing the loan from a home equity 
line of credit to a non-real estate secured term loan.  

Management considers troubled debt restructurings and subsequent defaults in restructured loans in the determination of the adequacy 
of the Company’s allowance for loan losses. When identifi ed as a TDR, a loan is evaluated for potential loss based on the present value 
of expected future cash fl ows discounted at the loan’s eff ective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price, or the estimated fair value 
of the collateral, less any selling costs if the loan is collateral dependent. Loans identifi ed as TDRs frequently are on non-accrual status at 
the time of the restructuring and, in some cases, partial charge-off s may have already been taken against the loan and a specifi c allowance 
may have already been established for the loan. As a result of any modifi cation as a TDR, the specifi c reserve associated with the loan 
may be increased. Additionally, loans modifi ed in a TDR are closely monitored for delinquency as an early indicator of possible future 
defaults. If loans modifi ed in a TDR subsequently default, the Company evaluates the loan for possible further impairment. As a result, 
any specifi c allowance may be increased, adjustments may be made in the allocation of the total allowance balance, or partial charge-off s 
may be taken to further write-down the carrying value of the loan. Management exercises signifi cant judgment in developing estimates 
for potential losses associated with TDRs.

NOTE 3. LOANS RECEIVABLE CONTINUED

$ –
  –
  
  202
  –
  –
  –
  –
$ 202

 –
 –

 1
 –
–
 –
 –
 1

$ –
  –
  
  202
  –
  –
  –
  –
$ 202
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Th e following table presents, as of December 31, 2013, the total loans and loans by impairment methodology (individually evaluated for 
impairment or collectively evaluated for impairment) and the total allowance for loan losses, the allowance by impairment methodology 
(individually evaluated for impairment or collectively evaluated for impairment).
    
 December 31, 2013   Allowance for loan losses  Loans 
      Ending Ending  Ending Ending
      balance: balance:  balance: balance
      individually collectively  individually collectively
Class of Loan      evaluated evaluated  evaluated evaluated
(Dollars   Beginning    Charge-   Ending for for Ending for for 
In Th ousands)    balance  off s  Recoveries Provisions balance impairment impairment balance impairment impairment

Construction loans:                    
 Residential
 Land acquisition, 
  development 
  & commercial
Real estate:
 Residential
 Commercial
Commercial, 
 industrial & 
 agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
Unallocated
   Total

NOTE 4. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

$ 117
  

 811
   
  725
  1,054
  

 459
  386
  145
  93
$ 3,790

$ –
  

 –
   
  (446)
  (88)

  (27)
  –
  (14)
  –
$ (575)

$ –
  
 
 – 
  
 81
  298

  –
  2
  –
  –
$ 381

$ 39

  61
   
  507
  (256)

  (105)
  (3)
  (68)
  (50)
$ 125

$ 156

  872
   
  867
  1,008

  327
  385
  63
  43
$ 3,721

$ –

  –
   
  163
  –

  10
  –
  –
  –
$ 173

$ 156

  872
   
  704
  1,008

  317
  385
  63
  43
$ 3,548

$ 6,768

  20,904
   
  72,934
  126,100

  42,155
  20,374
  8,698
  –
$ 297,933

$ –

  1,550
   
  850
  9,266

  324
  –
  –
  –
$ 11,990

$ 6,768

  19,354
   
  72,084
  116,834

  41,831
  20,374
  8,698
  –
$ 285,943
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Th e following table presents, as of December 31, 2012, the total loans and loans by impairment methodology (individually evaluated for 
impairment or collectively evaluated for impairment) and the total allowance for loan losses, the allowance by impairment methodology 
(individually evaluated for impairment or collectively evaluated for impairment).
    
 December 31, 2012   Allowance for loan losses  Loans 
      Ending Ending  Ending Ending
      balance: balance:  balance: balance:
      individually collectively  individually collectively
Class of Loan      evaluated evaluated  evaluated evaluated
(Dollars   Beginning    Charge-   Ending for for Ending for for 
In Th ousands)    balance  off s  Recoveries Provisions balance impairment impairment balance impairment impairment

Construction loans:
 Residential
 Land acquisition, 
  development 
  & commercial
Real estate:
 Residential
 Commercial
Commercial, 
 industrial & 
 agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
Unallocated
   Total

Loans by credit quality indicators as of December 31, 2013 were as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)   Special  Substandard Substandard
 Pass  Mention   Accruing  Nonaccrual  Total  
Construction loans:
   Residential
 Land acquisition, development & commercial
Real estate loans:
   Residential
   Commercial
Commercial, industrial, agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
   Total Loans

At December 31, 2013, the Company does not have any loans classifi ed as Doubtful or Loss.

NOTE 4. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES CONTINUED

$ 90
  

 953
   
  538
  1,314
  

 628
  313
  143
  –
$ 3,979

$ 6,768
  19,336
   
  67,548
  121,970
  41,051
  20,316
  8,668
$ 285,657

$ –
  –
   
  4,455
  510
  96
  –
  –
$ 5,061

$ –
  1,568
   
  223
  3,620
  815
  –
  –
$ 6,226

$ –
  –
   
  708
  –
  193
  58
  30
$ 989

$ 6,768
  20,904
   
  72,934
  126,100
  42,155
  20,374
  8,698
$ 297,933

$ –
  

 (519)
   
  (151)
  (478)
  

 (71)
  (393)
  (4)
  –
$ (1,616)

$ –
  

 –
   
  –
  18
  

 –
  –
  1
  –
$ 19

$ 27

  377
   
  338
  200

  (98)
  466
  5
  93
$ 1,408

$ 117

  811
   
  725
  1,054

  459
  386
  145
  93
$ 3,790

$ –
  

 –
   
  137
  71

  –
  –
  –
  –
$ 208

$ 117

  811
   
  588
  983

  459
  386
  145
  93
$ 3,582

$ 5,036

  20,198
   
  69,691
  109,302

  42,382
  20,504
  7,824
  –
$ 274,937

$ –

  3,632
   
  810
  10,157

  916
  115
  –
  –
$ 15,630

$ 5,036

  16,566
   
  68,881
  99,145

  41,466
  20,389
  7,824
  –
$ 259,307
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Loans by credit quality indicators as of December 31, 2012 were as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)   Special  Substandard Substandard
 Pass  Mention Accruing Nonaccrual Total
 
Construction loans:
   Residential
 Land acquisition, development & commercial
Real estate loans:
   Residential
   Commercial
Commercial, industrial, agricultural
Equity lines
Consumer
   Total Loans

At December 31, 2012, the Company does not have any loans classifi ed as Doubtful or Loss.

NOTE 5. FORECLOSED PROPERTIES
 
Changes in foreclosed properties for 2013 were as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  Other Real Valuation
 Estate Owned  Allowance Net
Balance at the beginning of the year
   Additions
   Writedowns
   Sales
Balance at the end of the year
 
Changes in foreclosed properties for 2012 were as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands) Other Real Valuation
 Estate Owned  Allowance Net 
Balance at the beginning of the year
   Additions
   Writedowns
   Sales
Balance at the end of the year

NOTE 4. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES CONTINUED

$ 5,036
  16,479
   
  63,299
  103,010
  41,313
  20,364
  7,824
$ 257,325

$ 9,513
  1,613
  –
  (2,048)
$ 9,078

$ 9,893
  1,665
  –
  (2,045)
$ 9,513

$ (575)
  –
  (608)
  248
$ (935)

$ (331)
  –
  (486)
  242
$ (575)

$ 8,938
  1,613
  (608)
  (1,800)
$ 8,143

$ 9,562
  1,665
  (486)
  (1,803)
$ 8,938

$ –
  –
   
  5,581
  2,479
  131
  25
  –
$ 8,216

$ –
  1,963
   
  229
  3,577
  938
  –
  –
$ 6,707

$ –
  1,756
   
  582
  236
  –
  115
  –
$ 2,689

$ 5,036
  20,198
   
  69,691
  109,302
  42,382
  20,504
  7,824
$ 274,937
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Th e major classifi cations of other real estate owned in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 
were as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  2013  2012  
Residential homes
Residential lots
Residential development
Commercial lots
Commercial buildings
   Total Other Real Estate Owned

NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
 
Th e major components of property and equipment at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  2013    2012  
Land
Buildings and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Soft ware
Construction in process
 Property and equipment, total
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
   Property and equipment, net

Depreciation and amortization expense was $539 thousand and $508 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively.
  
Leases
Th e Company currently leases its main offi  ce under a non-cancelable lease agreement. Th e lease expires December 15, 2015 and provides 
an option to extend the lease for two additional fi ve-year periods. Terms of the agreement provide for an annual rental increase based on 
a published infl ation index, not to exceed three percent over the rent for the immediately preceding lease year. Th e Company currently 
leases a branch location under a non-cancelable lease agreement. Terms of the agreement provide for an annual rental increase based on 
a published infl ation index, not to exceed three percent over the rent for the immediately preceding lease year. Th e lease expires on July 
31, 2016 and provides one remaining option to extend the lease for an additional fi ve-year period. Th e Company currently leases space to 
operate an automated teller machine under a non-cancelable lease agreement. Th e lease expires April 1, 2021 and provides an option to 
extend the lease for two additional fi ve-year periods. Terms of the agreement provide for an annual rental increase of three percent over 
the rent for the immediately preceding lease year. 

NOTE 5. FORECLOSED PROPERTIES CONTINUED

$ –
  3,472
  –
  1,076
  3,595
$ 8,143

$ 4,257
  6,061
  2,129
  2,731
  458
  97
  15,733
  3,578
$ 12,155

$ 1,277
  2,855
  466
  271
  4,069
$ 8,938

$ 3,957
  3,698
  2,390
  2,271
  449
  279
  13,044
  3,290
$ 9,754
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Th e current minimum annual lease payments under non-cancelable leases in eff ect at December 31, 2013 were as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)   2013    
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Th ereaft er
Total

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $324 thousand and $315 thousand, respectively.

NOTE 7. DEPOSITS
 
Th e aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of one hundred thousand dollars or more at December 31, 2013 and 2012    
was $70.3 million and $66.6 million, respectively.
 
At December 31, 2013, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

(Dollars In Th ousands)  2013    
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Total

Th e Company obtains certain deposits through the eff orts of third-party deposit brokers. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, brokered 
deposits totaled $37.0 million and $35.9 million, respectively, and were included in interest-bearing deposits on the consolidated bal-
ance sheets.

NOTE 8. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
 
Short term borrowings consist of the following at December 31, 2013 and 2012:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  2013 2012
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase  $ 258  $ 216
  
Weighted average interest rate    0.51%   0.51%

Short term borrowings consist of securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are secured transactions with customers and 
generally mature the day following the day sold. Short-term borrowings may also include federal funds purchased, which are unsecured 
overnight borrowings from other fi nancial institutions. At December 31, 2013, the Bank had established $19.0 million in unsecured 
federal funds lines of credit and another $8.0 million secured line of credit. At year-end 2013, there was no balance outstanding on any 
line of credit.

 

NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

$ 267
  268
  67
  11
  12
  27
$ 652

$ 82,046
  18,600
  8,943
  13,492
  9,080
$ 132,161
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NOTE 9. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BORROWINGS

Th e Company has outstanding long-term debt with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta in the amount of $22.0 million as of Decem-
ber 31, 2013 and 2012. Th e long-term debt at December 31, 2013 is comprised of one convertible advance in the amount of $4 million, 
one fi xed rate advance in the amount of $3 million, one fi xed rate advance in the amount of $12 million, and one variable rate advance 
in the amount of $3 million. Th e Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta has the option to convert the convertible advance on the conver-
sion date below, and on any quarterly interest payment date thereaft er, with at least two business days’ notice. If called, the advance will 
be converted into a 3-month London Interbank Off ered Rate (LIBOR) based adjustable rate credit. Th e variable rate advance provided 
short-term fi nancing at the FHLB’s equivalent of a Fed Funds rate with the ability to prepay without a penalty.
 
At December 31, 2013 and 2012, borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta were as follows:

 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  
 Advance Maturity Conversion Current
 Date  Date  Date  Rate  2013  2012 

Th e Company had collateral pledged on these borrowings at December 31, 2013 including real estate loans totaling $43.1 million, invest-
ment securities totaling $4.4 million, and Federal Home Loan Bank stock with a book value of $1.4 million.

NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
 
Th e Company uses a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or un-
observable. Observable inputs refl ect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs refl ect the Company’s 
market assumptions. Th e three levels of the fair value hierarchy based on these two types of inputs are as follows:
 
Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation is based on observable inputs including quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities, quoted prices 
for identical or similar assets and liabilities in less active markets, and model-based valuation techniques for which signifi cant assumptions 
can be derived primarily from or corroborated by observable data in the market.

Level 3 - Valuation is based on model-based techniques that use one or more signifi cant inputs or assumptions that are unobservable in 
the market.
 
Th e following describes the valuation techniques used by the Company to measure certain fi nancial assets and liabilities recorded at fair 
value on a recurring basis in the consolidated fi nancial statements:
 
Securities available for sale: Securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based 
upon quoted market prices, when available (Level 1). If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are measured utilizing indepen-
dent valuation techniques of identical or similar securities for which signifi cant assumptions are derived primarily from or corroborated 
by observable market data. Th ird party vendors compile prices from various sources and may determine the fair value of identical or simi-
lar securities by using pricing models that consider observable market data (Level 2).

Bank owned life insurance: Bank owned life insurance represents insurance policies on certain offi  cers of the Company. Th e cash values 
are estimates using information provided by insurance carriers. Th ese polices are carried at their cash surrender value, which approximates 
fair value.

September 7, 2007
July 27, 2011
April 13, 2012
November 7, 2012
December 11, 2013

September 7, 2017
July 28, 2014
April 13, 2016
November 7, 2013
December 11, 2014

March 7, 2011 3.690%
2.190%
1.265%
0.355%
0.355%

$ 4,000
  3,000
  12,000
  −
 3,000
$ 22,000

$ 4,000
  3,000
  12,000
  3,000
 −
$ 22,000
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NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS CONTINUED

 Derivative assets: Derivative assets are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based upon quoted market 
prices, when available (Level 1). If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are measured utilizing independent valuation tech-
niques of identical or similar securities for which signifi cant assumptions are derived primarily from or corroborated by observable market 
data. Th ird party vendors compile prices from various sources and may determine the fair value of identical or similar assets by using pric-
ing models that consider observable market data (Level 2).
 
Derivative liabilities: Derivative liabilities are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based upon quoted 
market prices, when available (Level 1). If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are measured utilizing independent valuation 
techniques of identical or similar securities for which signifi cant assumptions are derived primarily from or corroborated by observable 
market data. Th ird party vendors compile prices from various sources and may determine the fair value of identical or similar liabilities by 
using pricing models that consider observable market data (Level 2).
 
Th e following tables present the balances of fi nancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 
2013 and 2012:

(Dollars In Th ousands) Carrying value at December 31, 2013
    Signifi cant
 Balance as Quoted Prices Other Signifi cant
 of  in Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
 December 31,  Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 2013 (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)
Assets:             
    U.S. Government agency securities  
    Mortgaged-backed securities    
    Municipal securities   
    

(Dollars In Th ousands)  Carrying value at December 31, 2012
    Signifi cant
 Balance as Quoted Prices Other Signifi cant
 of  in Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
 December 31,  Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 2012 (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)
Assets:             
    U.S. Government agency securities   
    Mortgaged-backed securities    
    Municipal securities       
    Derivative assets     
Liabilities:               
    Derivative liabilities     

 

$ 26,284
  15,361
  16,277

$ 29,842
  21,984
  11,640
  67
   
$ 67

$ 29,842
  21,984
  11,640
  67
   
$ 67

$ 26,284
  15,361
  16,277
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NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS CONTINUED

Certain assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
Adjustments to the fair value of these assets usually result from the application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of 
individual assets.
 
Th e following describes the valuation techniques used by the Company to measure certain assets recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring 
basis in the consolidated fi nancial statements:
 
Impaired Loans: Th e Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time a loan is considered 
impaired and a specifi c reserve is established. Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in 
accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired. Once a loan is identifi ed as individually impaired, 
management measures the extent of any loss. Th e fair value of impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods, including collat-
eral value, market value of similar debt, enterprise value, liquidation value, and discounted cash fl ow. Th ose impaired loans not requiring 
an allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceeds the recorded investment in such 
loans. Impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral require classifi cation in the fair value hierarchy. 
If carried at market price based on appraised value using observable market data, it is recorded as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised 
value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraisal value and there is 
no observable market price, the Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 3. 
 
Other Real Estate Owned (OREO): Th e carrying amount of real estate owned by the Company resulting from foreclosures is estimated 
at the lesser of cost or the fair value of the real estate based on an observable market price or a current appraised value less selling costs. If 
carried at market price based on appraised value using observable market data, it is recorded as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised 
value is not available or is not current, or management determines the fair value of the real estate is further impaired below the appraised 
value or there is no observable market price, the Company records the real estate as nonrecurring Level 3. 
 
Th e following table summarizes the Company’s assets that were measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2013 
and 2012.

(Dollars In Th ousands)  Carrying value at December 31, 2013
    Signifi cant
 Balance as Quoted Prices Other Signifi cant
 of  in Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
 December 31,  Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 2013 (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)
Assets:             
Impaired loans, net of valuation allowance
Other real estate owned

(Dollars In Th ousands)  Carrying value at December 31, 2012
    Signifi cant
 Balance as Quoted Prices Other Signifi cant
 of  in Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
 December 31,  Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 2012 (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)
Assets:             
Impaired loans, net of valuation allowance
Other real estate owned
  

$ 306
  8,143

$ 1,130
  8,938

$ −
  3,745

$ 62
  4,382

$ 306
  4,398

$ 1,068
  4,556
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NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS CONTINUED

At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company did not have any liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.
 
Th e following table displays quantitative information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements for December 31, 2013:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)   Quantitative information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements for December 31, 2013
     Range 
Assets Fair Value Valuation Technique(s) Unobservable input (Weighted Average)
Impaired loans

Other real estate owned

Th e following table displays quantitative information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements for December 31, 2012: 

(Dollars In Th ousands)   Quantitative information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements for December 31, 2012
     Range
Assets Fair Value Valuation Technique(s) Unobservable input (Weighted Average)
Impaired loans

Other real estate owned

Th e following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value disclosures for fi nancial instruments:
 
Cash and due fr om banks: Th e carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheet for cash on hand and amounts due from 
correspondent banks approximate their fair values. Th e fair values for certifi cates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash fl ow 
calculation that applies interest rates currently being off ered on certifi cates of deposit to a schedule of contractual maturities on such 
time deposits.

Federal funds sold: Federal funds sold consist of overnight loans to other fi nancial institutions and mature within one to three days. 
At December 31, 2013 and 2012, management believes the carrying value of federal funds sold approximates estimated market value.

Available-for-sale securities: Fair values for securities, excluding restricted equity securities, are based on quoted market prices, where 
available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Restricted equity securities: For these restricted equity securities, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value based on the 
redemption provisions of the related securities.

Loans receivable: For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no signifi cant change in credit risk, fair values are based on 
carrying amounts. Th e fair values for other loans are estimated using discounted cash fl ow analysis, based on interest rates currently being 
off ered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.

$ 306
   
   

$ 1,458
   
 
  
$ 2,940

$ 1,068
   
   

$ 2,177
   
  
 
$ 2,379

Discounted appraised value
 
 

Discounted appraised value 
 
 

Internal evaluations 

Discounted appraised value
 
 

Discounted appraised value 
 
 

Internal evaluations 

10% - 10% (10%)

32% - 32% (32%)
 0% - 6% (5%)

0% - 25% (9%)
10% - 10% (10%)

6% - 10% (10%)

0% - 10% (7%)
6% - 10% (10%)

0% - 30% (1%)
10% - 50% (13%)

Selling cost
Discount for lack of 
marketability and age 
of appraisal
Selling cost
Discount for lack of 
marketability and age 
of appraisal 
Internal evaluations 

Selling cost
Discount for lack of 
marketability and age 
of appraisal
Selling cost
Discount for lack of 
marketability and age
of appraisal 
Internal evaluations 
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Bank owned life insurance: Th e cash values of these policies are estimates using information provided by insurance carriers. Th e policies 
are carried at their cash surrender value, which approximates fair value. 

Deposit liabilities: Th e fair values disclosed for demand and savings deposits are, by defi nition, equal to the amount payable on 
demand at the reporting date. Th e fair values for certifi cates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash fl ow calculation that 
applies interest rates currently being off ered on certifi cates of deposit to a schedule of contractual maturities on such time deposits.

Short term borrowings: Short term borrowings consist of overnight borrowings and mature within one to three days. At December 
31, 2013 and 2012, management believes the carrying value of securities sold under agreements to repurchase approximates estimated 
market value.

FHLB borrowings: Th e fair values for long term borrowings are estimated using a discounted cash fl ow calculation that applies interest 
rates currently being off ered on long term borrowings to the contractual maturities on such long term borrowings.

Accrued interest: Th e carrying amount of accrued interest receivable and payable approximates fair value.

Off -balance sheet fi nancial instruments: Th e fair values of commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are estimated us-
ing the fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the fair value of loan commitments and 
standby letters of credit were deemed to be immaterial.
 
Th e carrying amounts and approximate fair values of the Company’s fi nancial instruments are as follows at December 31, 2013:

(Dollars In Th ousands)  Fair value at December 31, 2013
    Signifi cant
 Carrying Quoted Prices Other Signifi cant
 Value as of  in Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
 December 31,  Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Approximate
Description 2013 (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3) Fair Values
Financial assets
 Cash and due from banks
 Federal funds sold
 Securities available-for-sale
 Restricted equity securities
 Loans, net
 Bank owned life insurance
 Accrued income
Financial liabilities
 Total deposits
 Short term borrowings
 FHLB borrowings
 Accrued interest payable

$ 19,537
  738
  57,922
  2,564
  294,212
 3,518
  1,877
   
  339,770
  258
  22,000
  286

$  
   
  57,922
  2,564
   
 3,518
  1,877
   
  327,514
  258 
  22,560
  286

$ 17,537  
 738

$  2,004
   
   
   
  293,135

$ 19,541
  738
  57,922
  2,564
  293,135
 3,518
  1,877
   
  327,514
  258
  22,560
  286
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Th e carrying amounts and approximate fair values of the Company’s fi nancial instruments are as follows at December 31, 2012:

(Dollars In Th ousands)  Fair value at December 31, 2012
    Signifi cant
 Carrying Quoted Prices Other Signifi cant
 Value as of  in Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
 December 31,  Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Approximate
Description 2012 (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3) Fair Values
Financial assets
 Cash and due from banks
 Federal funds sold
 Securities available-for-sale
 Restricted equity securities
 Loans, net
 Accrued income
 Derivative assets
Financial liabilities
 Total deposits
 Short term borrowings
 FHLB borrowings
 Accrued interest payable
    Derivative liabilities

NOTE 11. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Th e following tables show the weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per common share and the eff ect on 
weighted average number of shares of diluted potential common stock. Potential dilutive common stock had no eff ect on income avail-
able to common shareholders.
 For the Years Ended December 31, 
 2013 2012

Dollars In Th ousands, except share 
and per share data
Earnings per common share, basic
Series C Preferred Stock Dividends
Eff ect of dilutive securities:
    Convertible preferred stock
Earnings per common share, diluted

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, stock options to purchase 391,710 and 459,690 shares, respectively, were outstanding. Th ese options 
were not included in the calculation of diluted weighted average shares as their impact would be antidilutive. 

Weighted 
Average 

Common Shares 
Outstanding

 3,259,424

  −
 3,259,424

Net Income 
Available to 
Common 

Shareholders
$ 3,987
 −
 
  
$ 3,987

Per Share 
Amount

$ 1.22
 
 
  −
$ 1.22

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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NOTE 10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS CONTINUED

$ 9,812
  196
  63,466
  2,591
  271,147
  1,590
  67
   
  309,997
  216
  22,000
  332
  67

Weighted 
Average 

Common Shares 
Outstanding

 3,269,063

 1,147,616
 4,416,679

Net Income 
Available to 
Common 

Shareholders
 $ 1,741
 390

 $ 2,131

Per Share 
Amount

$ 0.53
 
 
  (0.05)
$ 0.48

$  
   
  63,466
  2,591
   
  1,590
  67
   
  310,453
  216 
  22,862
  332
  67

$ 9,812
  196
   

$  
   
   
   
  272,981

$ 9,812
  196
  63,466
  2,591
  272,981
  1,590
  67
   
  310,453
  216
  22,862
  332
  67
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Th e Company recorded stock based compensation expense of $36 thousand and $29 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2013 
and 2012, respectively.

Th e Company has a 2005 Stock Option Plan (the Plan) pursuant to which the Board of Directors may grant stock options to directors, 
offi  cers and employees. Under the fair value recognition provisions of relevant accounting guidance, stock-based compensation cost is 
measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite 
service period, which is the vesting period.  
 
Th e Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options. Th e fair value of the stock based 
payment awards is aff ected by the price of our stock and a number of fi nancial assumptions and variables. Th ese variables include the risk 
free interest rate, expected dividend rate, expected stock price volatility and the expected life of the options. No options were granted 
in the years ended December 31, 2013 or 2012. All previously issued options were fully vested by the end of 2012. Total compensation 
related to stock options was $1 thousand in 2012 compared to none in 2013.
 
A summary of option activity under the 2005 stock option plan during the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Balance at December 31, 2012
 Granted
 Exercised
 Forfeited
Balance at December 31, 2013
Exercisable at December 31, 2013

(1) Th e aggregate intrinsic value of a stock option in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the amount by which the 
current market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the option) that would have been received by the option holders 
had all option holders exercised their options on December 31, 2013.
 
In 2009, the Board of Directors authorized 132,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the Restricted Stock Plan. Th e plan 
provides for restricted stock awards to key employees. Restricted shares awarded to employees generally vest over a fi ve year period and 
compensation expense is charged to income ratably over the vesting period and was $36 thousand in 2013 and $28 thousand in 2012. 
Compensation is accounted for using the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date the restricted shares are awarded. 
Th e weighted-average grant date fair value of restricted stock granted in 2013 was $5.98 compared to $4.20 in 2012. Th e Company 
granted 7,781 and 20,971 shares of restricted stock under the plan in 2013 and 2012, respectively.
 
As of December 31, 2013, there was $107 thousand of total unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock granted under the 
Plan. Th e cost is expected to be recognized through 2018. A summary of the activity for restricted stock awards for the periods indicated 
is presented below:

Nonvested at beginning of year
 Granted
 Vested
 Cancelled
Nonvested at end of year

Options
Outstanding

 459,690
 –
 –
 (67,980)
 391,710
 391,710

Shares
 25,896
 7,781
 (5,831)
 –
 27,846

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
$ 9.31
  –
  –
  10.00
$ 9.34
$ 9.34

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

$ 4.76
  5.98
  5.03
  –
$ 5.05

Aggregate 
Intrinsic 
Value(1)

 
 
 
 
$ –
$ –

Shares
  6,566
  20,971
  (1,641)
  –
  25,896

Weighted 
Average 

Contractual 
Term (years)

 
 
 
 
 2.54
 2.54

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

$ 7.16
  4.20
  7.16
  –
$ 4.76

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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NOTE 12. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION
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Th e Company adopted a profi t sharing plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Th e plan covers substantially all 
employees. Participants may contribute a percentage of compensation, subject to a maximum allowed under the Code. Th e Company makes 
non-discretionary matching contributions of 100% of the employee’s deferral up to 3% of compensation and matches 50% of the employee’s 
next 3% deferral. In addition, the Company may make additional contributions at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Th e Company’s 
matching contributions were $180 thousand and $157 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Th e Company has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”) for certain key offi  cers.  Th e plan provides the participating 
offi  cers with supplemental retirement income. Th e SERP provides lifetime payments equal to 20% of a participant’s average annual base 
salary for the fi ve years immediately prior to retirement. Th ere is an incentive formula with an additional benefi t of 20% of a participant’s 
average annual base salary for the fi ve years immediately prior to retirement if performance targets set by the Board of Directors are met. 
Th e SERP contains provisions for disability and survivor benefi ts, a benefi ts vesting schedule based on age attained and automatic full 
vesting in the event of a change in control of the Company. Th e funding mechanism for the plan is Bank Owned Life Insurance policies 
on the lives of the participants.  
 
NOTE 14. INCOME TAXES
 
Th e Company fi les income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and the Commonwealth of Virginia. With few exceptions, the 
Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2010. Th e 
Company has operating loss carryforwards of $889 thousand for federal income tax purposes that may be used to off set future taxable 
income. If not previously utilized, the federal loss carryforwards will begin to expire in 2025.
 
Th e current and deferred components of income tax expense (benefi t) for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  2013  2012  
Current
Deferred
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance change
Income tax expense (benefi t)

Rate Reconciliation
Total income tax expense (benefi t) diff ered from the “expected” amount computed by applying the U.S. Federal income tax rate of 34 
percent to income before income taxes as a result of the following.

 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  2013  2012  
Tax at statutory federal rate
Tax-exempt interest income
Tax-exempt interest disallowance
Other
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance change
Income tax expense (benefi t)

$ 68
  1,272
  – 
$ 1,340 

$ 1,384
  (96) 
  26
  26 
  – 
$ 1,340 
 

$ 853
  (1) 
  (2,925) 
$ (2,073) 

$ 858
  (16) 
  1
  9 
  (2,925) 
$ (2,073) 

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
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NOTE 14. INCOME TAXES CONTINUED

Deferred Income Tax Analysis
Th e signifi cant components of net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  2013  2012  
Deferred tax assets 
Net operating losses
Alternative minimum tax
Pre-opening expenses
Allowance for loan losses
Stock-based compensation
Other real estate expenses
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale 
Other
Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale
Accretion of bond discount
Deferred loan fees
Deferred tax liability
Net deferred tax asset

NOTE 15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 
Litigation
In the normal course of business the Company may be involved in various legal proceedings. Th e Company was not involved in any litiga-
tion for the year ended December 31, 2013.
 
Financial Instruments with Off -Balance-Sheet Risk
Th e Company is party to credit related fi nancial instruments with off -balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the 
fi nancing needs of its customers. Th ese fi nancial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Th ese 
instruments involve, to varying degrees, credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet.
 
Th e Company’s exposure to credit loss, in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the fi nancial instrument, for commitments 
to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. Th e Company uses the same 
credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

A summary of the Company’s commitments at December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  2013  2012 
 
Commitments to extend credit
 
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit
 
Standby letters of credit

$ 302
 98
  110
  675
  236
  290
 308
  25
  2,044
   
  297
  –
  1
  587
  885
$ 1,159

$ 1,362
 62
  126
  694
  236
  449
 –
  23
  2,952
   
  329
  723
  7
  493
  1,552
$ 1,400

$ 19,164
   
  41,056
   
  4,040

 $ 16,073
    
  30,781

 3,346
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Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the 
contract. Commitments generally have fi xed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many 
of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent 
future cash requirements. Th e Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. Th e amount of collateral 
obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the party. Col-
lateral held varies, but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, residential real estate and income-producing 
commercial properties.
 
Unfunded commitments under commercial lines of credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft  protection agreements are commitments 
for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers. Th ese lines of credit may or may not be drawn upon to the total extent to 
which the Company is committed.
 
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third 
party. Th ose guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. Th e credit risk involved in issuing 
letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral held varies as specifi ed above 
and is required in instances which the Company deems necessary.
 
Th e Company is required to maintain certain required reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
these reserve balances amounted to $3.3 million and $3.9 million, respectively.
 
Th e Company from time to time may have cash and cash equivalents on deposit with fi nancial institutions that exceed federally insured 
limits. Balances in excess of FDIC insured amounts totaled $6,846,000 and $4,018,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
 
Financial Derivatives
Financial Derivatives are reported at fair value in other assets and other liabilities. Th e accounting for changes in the fair value of a deriva-
tive depends on whether it has been designated and qualifi es as part of a hedging relationship. For derivatives not designated as hedges, the 
gain or loss is recognized in current earnings. In 2008, the Company entered into interest rate swaps to facilitate customer transactions in 
connection with their fi nancing needs. Upon entering into swaps with the borrowers to meet their fi nancing needs, the Company entered 
into off setting positions with counterparties to minimize risk to the Company. Th ese back-to-back swaps qualify as derivatives, but are 
not designated as hedging instruments. Interest rate swap contracts involve the risk of dealing with borrowers and counterparties and 
their ability to meet contractual terms. When the fair value of a derivative instrument contract is positive, this generally indicates that the 
counterparty or customer owes the Company, and results in credit risk to the Company. When the fair value of a derivative instrument 
contract is negative, the Company owes the customer or counterparty and therefore, has no risk. Th e interest rate swaps entered into in 
2008 matured in June, 2013. At year-end 2013, the Company did not hold any interest rate swaps.  
 
A summary of the Company’s interest rate swaps is as follows:

 
(Dollars In Th ousands)  December 31, 2013  December 31, 2012  
   

Interest rate swap agreements:
Pay fi xed / receive variable swaps
Pay variable / receive fi xed swaps
Total

Estimated
Fair Value
 
$ –
  –
$ –

Notional
Amount

 
$ –
  –
$ –

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES CONTINUED

Estimated
Fair Value
 
$ (67)
  67
$ –

Notional
Amount

 
$ (2,812)
  2,812
$ –
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HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16. REGULATORY RESTRICTIONS

Dividends
Th e Company, as a Virginia banking corporation, may pay dividends only out of its retained earnings. However, regulatory authorities 
may limit payment of dividends by any company when it is determined that such a limitation is in the public interest and is necessary 
to ensure fi nancial soundness of the Company. At December 31, 2013, there were no retained earnings available from which to pay 
dividends.
 
Capital Requirements
Th e Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal and 
state banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretion-
ary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material eff ect on the Company’s and the Bank’s fi nancial statements. 
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet 
specifi c capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off -balance-sheet items as calculated 
under regulatory accounting practices. Th e capital amounts and classifi cation are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators 
about components, risk weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.
 
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum 
amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier I capital to average assets, 
as all those terms are defi ned in the applicable regulations. As of December 31, 2013, management believes the Company and the Bank 
met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
 
As of December 31, 2013, the most recent notifi cation from the Federal Reserve Bank categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the 
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-
based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the following table. Th ere are no conditions or events since the notifi cation 
that management believes have changed the Bank’s category.
 
Th e Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the following table.

   Minimum To Be
  Minimum Well Capitalized Under  
  Capital  Prompt Corrective
December 31, 2013 Actual Requirement  Action Provisions  
(in thousands except for percentages)  Amount    Ratio   Amount  Ratio  Amount     Ratio  
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
HomeTown Bank
Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
HomeTown Bank
Tier I Capital (to Average Assets)
Consolidated
HomeTown Bank

$ 43,858
$ 42,516
     
$ 40,137
$ 38,795
     
$ 40,137
$ 38,795

$ 25,077
$ 25,077
     
$ 12,538
$ 12,538
     
$ 15,719
$ 15,719

 N/A
$ 31,346
  
 N/A
$ 18,808
  
 N/A
$ 19,648

 14.0%
 13.6%
     
 12.8%
 12.4%
     
 10.2%
 9.9%

8.0%
8.0%

     
4.0%
4.0%

     
4.0%
4.0%

N/A  
10.0%

     
N/A  
6.0%

     
N/A
5.0%
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NOTE 16. REGULATORY RESTRICTIONS CONTINUED

   Minimum To Be
  Minimum Well Capitalized Under  
  Capital  Prompt Corrective
December 31, 2012 Actual Requirement Action Provisions  
(in thousands except for percentages)  Amount     Ratio    Amount   Ratio  Amount      Ratio  
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
HomeTown Bank
Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated
HomeTown Bank
Tier I Capital (to Average Assets)
Consolidated
HomeTown Bank

NOTE 17. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
 
Th e Company has entered into transactions with its directors, signifi cant shareholders and their affi  liates (related parties). Such transac-
tions were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and collateral, 
as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with other customers, and did not, in the opinion of management, involve 
more than normal credit risk or present other unfavorable features.
 
Aggregate loan transactions with related parties were as follows:
 
(Dollars In Th ousands) 2013   2012          
Balance, beginning
New loans
Repayments
Balance, ending
 
Aggregate deposit balances with related parties at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $5,994,000 and $4,696,000, respectively.
 

$ 38,818
$ 37,243
     
$ 35,299
$ 33,724
     
$ 35,299
$ 33,724

$ 22,499
$ 22,499
     
$ 11,250
$ 11,250
     
$ 14,877
$ 14,877

   N/A
$ 28,124
     
   N/A
$ 16,874
     
   N/A
$ 18,596

13.8%
13.2%

     
12.6%
12.0%

     
9.5%
9.1%

8.0%
8.0%

     
4.0%
4.0%

     
4.0%
4.0%

N/A  
10.0%

     
N/A  
6.0%

     
N/A
5.0%

$ 8,140
  5,182
  (5,042)
$ 8,280

$ 8,027
  7,854
  (7,741)
$ 8,140
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NOTE 18. CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

Th e Department of the Treasury created the Troubled Asset Relief Program in 2008 to make capital available to certain U.S. fi nancial 
institutions through the Capital Purchase Program. Under this program, the Treasury would purchase preferred stock with an initial 
cumulative dividend rate of 5% and received warrants to purchase additional preferred stock with a cumulative dividend rate of 9%. Par-
ticipating fi nancial institutions were required to adopt the Treasury’s standards for executive compensation and corporate governance for 
the period during which the Treasury holds equity issued under the TARP Capital Purchase Program.
 
On September 18, 2009, as part of the Capital Purchase Program, the Company entered into a Letter Agreement and Securities Purchase 
Agreement with the Treasury, pursuant to which the Company sold $10 million of its Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, 
Series A, and a warrant to purchase $374 thousand of its Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series B. Th e Warrant was 
exercised immediately, and the discount accreted until the shares were redeemed in 2013.   
 
Th e Preferred Stock qualifi ed as Tier 1 capital. Th e cumulative dividend rate for Series A was 5% per annum for the fi rst fi ve years, and 
thereaft er at a rate of 9% per annum. Th e Series B paid cumulative dividends at a rate of 9% per annum. For the year through the Septem-
ber 23, 2013 redemption of the Series A and B preferred stock, the Company paid a total of $457 thousand in dividends. Th e Company 
paid a total of $1.3 million in dividends on Series A and B preferred stock in 2012. Of the total dividends paid, $534 thousand were for 
2012 and $800 thousand were for 2011. Due to the net loss incurred in 2010, the Company was prohibited from paying dividends during 
2011 on the preferred stock.
 
On October 31, 2012, the Company’s $10 million of Series A Preferred Stock and $374 thousand of Series B Preferred Stock were sold 
by the Treasury as part of its eff orts to manage and recover its investments under the TARP. While the sale of these preferred shares to 
new owners did not result in any proceeds to the Company and did not change the Company’s capital position or accounting for these 
securities, it did eliminate restrictions put in place by the Treasury on TARP recipients.

On June 28, 2013, HomeTown Bankshares Corporation completed a $14,000,000 private placement of its convertible preferred stock. 
Pursuant to the terms of the Private Placement Memorandum, dated April 17, 2013, and amended thereaft er, the Company sold 14,000 
shares of its 6.0% Series C NonCumulative Perpetual Convertible Preferred Stock at a price of $1,000 per share. Th e convertible preferred 
stock pays quarterly dividends equivalent to six percent (6%) per annum, and is convertible into shares of common stock of the Company 
based on a conversion price of $6.25 per share, subject to adjustment. Th e Company paid $389 thousand in dividends on Series C pre-
ferred stock in 2013.  
 
On September 24, 2013, the Company used the net proceeds from this off ering to redeem the $10,374,000 of its Fixed Rate Cumulative 
Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A and Series B. Th e remaining proceeds have and will be used to support future growth and for general 
corporate purposes.

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 19. RECLASSIFICATIONS OUT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 
Items not reclassifi ed in their entirety to net income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

 Details about Other 
 Comprehensive Components      
(Dollars In Th ousands) 2013  2012    
Available for sale securities                
Realized gains on sales of securities held for 
    sale during the period   
Tax expense  related to realized gains on securities sold      

NOTE 20. CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
Financial information pertaining only to HomeTown Bankshares Corporation follows. Th e parent company was formed on September 
4, 2009.

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars In Th ousands)
Assets
Cash and due from banks
Investment in bank subsidiary
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity:
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Dollars In Th ousands)
Expenses
Net loss before income taxes
Income tax benefi t
Net loss before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary
Undistributed net income of subsidiary
Net Income

For the year ended
December 31, 2013
 
$ (145)
  (145) 
  49
  (96) 
  2,825
$ 2,729

For the year ended 
December 31, 2012
 
$ (140) 
  (140) 
  49
  (91) 
  4,687
$ 4,596

Amounts Reclassifi ed from 
Other Comprehensive Income 

for the Years Ended December 31,
Aff ected Line Item in the Statement 

Where Net Income is Presented

Gains on sales of investment securities 
Income tax expense
Net income

$ 152
 52
$ 100

$ 131
  45
$ 86

December 31, 2013
 
$ 1,352
  38,195
  –
$ 39,547
   
$ 9
   
  39,538
$ 39,547

December 31, 2012
 
$ 721
  35,853
  145
$ 36,719
   
$ –
   
  36,719
$ 36,719

HomeTown Bankshares Corporation
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 20. CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONTINUED

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars In Th ousands)
Cash fl ows fr om operating activities:
Net income
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary bank
Decrease (increase) in other assets
Increase in other liabilities
Net cash fl ows provided by (used in) operating activities
 
Cash fl ows fr om investing activities:
Capital contribution to bank subsidiary
Net cash fl ows used in investing activities
 
Cash fl ows fr om fi nancing activities:
Issuance of preferred stock net of issuance costs
Preferred stock redeemed
Preferred dividend payment
Net cash fl ows provided by (used in) fi nancing activities
 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Cash and cash equivalents, ending

For the year ended
December 31, 2013
 
$ 2,729
  (2,825)
 145
  9 
 58
  
  
 (1,500)
 (1,500)
  
  
 13,293
 (10,374)
 (846)
 2,073
  
 631 
  
 721
$ 1,352

For the year ended 
December 31, 2012
 
$ 4,596
  (4,687)
 (145) 
  – 
 (236)
  
  
 –
 –
  
  
 –
 –
 (1,335)
 (1,335)
  
 (1,571) 
  
 2,292
$ 721



HomeTown Bankshares Corporation Shareholder Information

Annual Meeting
Th e annual meeting of shareholders will be held on Tuesday, May 13, 2014 at 2:00 pm at Th e Jeff erson Center, Roanoke, Virginia.

Requests for Information
Requests for information should be directed to Ms. Susan K. Still, President and CEO, HomeTown Bankshares Corporation, 
202 South Jeff erson Street, Roanoke, VA 24011; telephone (540) 345-6000.

Independent Auditors
Yount, Hyde & Barbour, PC | 50 South Cameron Street | Winchester, Virginia 22601

Corporate Counsel
Gentry Locke Rakes & Moore, LLP  | 10 Franklin Road, SE  | SunTrust Plaza  | Roanoke, Virginia 24022

Stock Transfer Agent
Registrar & Transfer  | 10 Commerce Drive  | Cranford, NJ 07016  | Telephone: (800) 368-5948

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Th e Bank is a member of the FDIC. Th is statement has not been reviewed or confi rmed for accuracy or relevance by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Main Offi ce
202 South Jeff erson Street  |  Roanoke, VA 24011  |  Telephone: (540) 345-6000  |  Fax: (540) 342-5626 

South Roanoke Offi ce
3521 Franklin Road, S.W.  |  Roanoke, VA 24014  |  Telephone: (540) 278-2070  |  Fax: (540) 278-1969 

Smith Mountain Lake Offi ce
13400 Booker T. Washington Highway  |  Moneta, VA 24121  |  Telephone: (540) 719-2265  |  Fax: (540) 719-0796

Colonial Avenue at 419 Offi ce
4225 Colonial Avenue  |  Roanoke, VA 24018  |  Telephone: (540) 278-1399  |  Fax: (540) 278-1958

NewRiver Bank Offi ce
2950 Market Street  |  Christiansburg, VA 24073  |  Telephone: (540) 391-4050  |  Fax: (540) 260-3484

Salem Offi ce (Opening Summer 2014)
852 W. Main Street  |  Salem, VA 24153
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202 S. Jefferson Street |  Roanoke, Virginia 24011-1702
540-345-6000 | www.hometownbankva.com




